




Listed on the Mainboard of the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited (SGX-ST) on 3 July 2003,
the YHI Group has come a long way since its humble
beginnings as a sole proprietorship established in
1948, engaged in the distribution of tyres, alloy wheels
and automotive batteries. Over the years, moving in
tandem with an increasing demand for automotive
and industrial products, we have successfully
diversified our business, and carved a niche for
ourselves in the global automotive arena as an
established alloy wheels manufacturer.

Today YHI is a familiar and trusted name in alloy wheels
manufacturing as an Original Design Manufacturer
(ODM) with two manufacturing plants located in
Shanghai, China and Taoyuan, Taiwan.

With 11 subsidiaries in 6 countries across the Asia-
Pacific region, we are strategically positioned to deliver
professional solutions that are customised to your unique
automotive and industrial product needs.

So be assured that we will respond and deliver. Today
and tomorrow.
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Right On
Track
From being an established distributor of automotive and industrial products
and an integrated service provider of alloy wheels, YHI’s broad spectrum
of products and services cater to the diverse needs of its customers.
Coupled with strategic leverage on technology and optimal utilisation
of resources, YHI evolves in tandem with market conditions to stay a
step ahead of the rest.

Expanding



GROUP MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENT

It is indeed our pleasure to present to you our
Annual Report for the year ended 31 December
2003.  It was a year of good achievements for YHI
Group.  Firstly, we were listed on the mainboard
of SGX-ST on 3 July 2003.  Secondly, driven by the
urgent need to accelerate our China expansion
plans, we successfully placed out new placement
shares to fund our expansion projects collectively
in December 2003.  Our final milestone in Year
2003 was cast when YHI Group achieved a record
profit for FY2003.

Here to share with you more on the Group’s
performance and growth potential, particularly his
thoughts and vision for 2004, is our Group Managing
Director, Mr Richard Tay.

Q1. Can you give us a breakdown on what
accounted for the Company’s revenue in
FY2003?

Ans: Total Group Proforma Revenue was about
S$221 million of which about 73% came
from our distribution business segment.
Our manufacturing business segment is
becoming more important and it
contributed about 27% as compared to
23% in FY2002.

Q2. What was YHI’s focus for FY2003? How
did the results measure up to your initial
expectations?

Ans: After achieving an impressive performance
in FY2002, our focus for FY2003 was to
ensure that our business model,
particularly our manufacturing capability
continues to strengthen and deliver good
profitability to the Group.  I am delighted
with the results of FY2003 and our Group
will continue to scale new heights.

...continues to
strengthen and

deliver good
profitability to

the group
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Mr Richard Tay
Group Managing Director



GROUP MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENT

Q3. Besides being listed on the SGX, did the Company
embark on new ventures, alliances or expansion
plans?

Ans: Since listed on 3 July 2003, the Company has forged
ahead rapidly with our expansion plans to grow our
manufacturing business segment with production
lines increasing from 3 to 4 lines.  More production
lines will continue to be added in our Shanghai
plant to fulfil increasing global demand for
alloy wheels not forgetting the fast growing
domestic market in China as well.  To-date we have
adequate orders to fulfil the capacity output of
6 production lines.

The other new venture we announced in FY2003
is related to the distribution business segment.
The 10% equity stake in a joint venture with
Yokohama Rubber Co Ltd. to set up Hangzhou
Yokohama Tire Co Ltd (“Yokohama Hangzhou”)
will bring great benefits to YHI in China as we
are now able to supply domestically the fast
growing demand for Yokohama tyres in China.
The Yokohama Hangzhou factory has accelerated
its expansion plan to double its capacity from
700,000 pieces in Year 2004 to 1.4 million pieces
by Year 2005.

In late FY2003, we were in discussion with Hitachi
to form a strategic alliance to distribute Hitachi
automotive batteries in China.  This has now been
realized.

Q4. With all the expansion plans being brought forward
so rapidly, how did you fund them?

Ans: Since all the capital expenditures relating to
expansion plans have been brought forward so
rapidly, the Company did a 15 million new share
placement in December 2003 to collectively fund
our China expansion programs.  It was a success as
all the shares were placed out and taken up quickly
by strategic institutional investors.

Q5. How do you expect the Company to 
perform in FY2004?

Ans: I anticipate that with the addition of 2 more
productions lines in our Shanghai plant coupled
with the setting up of a new Joint Venture to provide
chrome alloy wheels to meet increasing global
demands and being awarded the distribution rights
for Hitachi automotive batteries in China, our
performance in FY2004 should exceed that of
FY2003.

Q6. One cannot ignore the immense potential of the
growing China market. What’s the next step for
YHI? Will China be the key market which the
Company will be focusing on in FY2004?

Ans: China will continue to be our key growth driver in the
coming years.  We intend to leverage on its strong
domestic demand for automotive products as well as
our manufacturing base to target the global market.

We will be focusing strongly in China especially in
our distribution business.  We will embark on a
more aggressive approach to expand our distribution
network in China by setting up more Yokohama
concept stores.

I believe with the additional supply of locally
manufactured tyres from Yokohama Hangzhou,
automotive batteries from Hitachi and the setting
up of more production lines to manufacture alloy
wheels for global and domestic replacement markets,
our China operations will be our focal point of
performance in FY2004.

Q7. What is the Company’s global strategy and priorities
for FY2004? And what are the strategic initiatives
that will be adopted?

Ans: We aim to be a world-class player in the alloy wheels
manufacturing arena.  Presently, we are already an
Original Design Manufacturer (“ODM”) of alloy wheels,
providing integrated services comprising design and
development, manufacturing, marketing and
distribution of alloy wheels within our YHI network.

Our strategic initiatives for 2004 would include
shortening the cycle time to market by designing
and developing new patterns in alloy wheels for
reputable Original Brand Makers (OBM) and to
establish a position for ourselves to be a fashion
leader in alloy wheels designs.

We aim to be
a world-class
player in the
alloy wheels

manufacturing
arena.



Q8. Can you then tell us what prospects are there for
your business in ASEAN – especially after AFTA
comes into force next year?

Ans: Asean markets have always been our traditional
pillars and with the present Yokohama distributorship
in 7 countries in Asean, it will continue to serve us
well.  Presently, Yokohama has factories in the
Philippines and Vietnam producing passenger car
tyres and light truck tyres respectively.  The proposed
new factory to be set up by Yokohama Rubber Co
Ltd in Thailand producing Yokohama truck and bus
tyres is expected to bring more benefits to YHI.

To tap the full benefits of AFTA for alloy wheels,
we do have plans to set-up an alloy wheels factory
in ASEAN.

Q9. YHI has been on such a fast-track expansion path.
What are some challenges you face in your
business?

Ans: Our fast-track expansion path is very much driven
by the market demands especially in China.  I
believe we have to be very pro-active in our
expansion plans to be one-step ahead of competition
and to be able to understand the dynamics of the
fast changing market demands. My biggest challenge
is to find good and competent staff, particularly in
China to manage the respective operational activities
up to my expectations.

Q10. What commitment can shareholders expect from
the Company?

Ans: The Company will continue to deliver good
profitability by way of expansion programs.
Although we are still on an expansion mode in
FY2003, we were very appreciative of the support
from our shareholders.  In this regard, a first and
final dividend of 0.6 cents/share (less tax) is
recommended as a starting token to our supportive
shareholders, many of whom have been with us
since our listing in July 2003.

Last but not least, I would like to take this opportunity
to express my heartfelt thanks and appreciation to
our shareholders, customers, staff and business
associates for their strong and committed support
to YHI. I hope we can continue to lead the Group
to steady growth and deliver positive results to
achieve better returns for our shareholders in
the future.

GROUP MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENT

Mr Richard Tay
Group Managing Director
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OUR FINANCIAL
HIGHLIGHTS

Results of Operations
for the financial year ended 31 December

Proforma

as at 31 December
Proforma

Actual

FY2003 FY2002 FY2001 FY2000
S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000

Sales 220,672 176,921 144,636 147,882

Profit before tax 19,215 14,886 2,266 6,489

Profit after tax and minority interests 14,643 11,426 1,035 4,775

Earnings per share 7.31 6.70 0.61 2.80

Financial Position

FY2003 FY2002 FY2001 FY2000
S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000

Current assets 108,015 78,298 65,269 65,772

Non-current assets

Other investments 128 82 105 168

Property, plant and equipment 41,924 38,809 34,538 33,744

Intangibles 942 0 0 0

Deferred tax assets 1,534 1,285 1,310 1,296

44,528 40,176 35,953 35,208

Total assets 152,543 118,474 101,222 100,980

Current liabilities 51,616 74,472 68,163 68,389

Non-current liabilities

Borrowings 9,965 8,848 4,951 5,271

Deferred tax liabilities 2,304 34 20 0

12,269 8,882 4,971 5,271

Total liabilities 63,885 83,354 73,134 73,660

Net assets 88,658 35,120 28,088 27,320

Shareholders' equity 87,221 34,116 27,699 26,983

Minority interests 1,437 1,004 389 337

88,658 35,120 28,088 27,320

 Net asset value per share (cents) 35.81  20.00  16.24  15.82 

Explanatory Notes

The above tables present our summary proforma financial data. The data presented in these tables have been prepared as if our group
corporate structure as at the date of the proforma financial information had been in existence since 1 January 2000.  Our proforma financial
information reflects the results of operations and financial position of the businesses and subsidiaries transferred to us pursuant to the
Restructuring Exercise as described in our Prospectus dated 24 June 2003.  The objective of the proforma financial information is to show
what our historical information might have been had our Group, as restructured, existed at an earlier date.

The proforma financial statements of the Group, because of their nature, may not  give a true picture of the Group’s financial position on
results. The proforma financial statements of the Group are not necessarily indicative of results of the operations or related effects on the
financial position that  would have been attained had the Group actually existed earlier.



United We
Stand
People form the backbone of YHI. We are a company of spirited individuals,
dedicated and passionate about what we do, and driven by the common
vision to deliver beyond expectations. In our quest for excellence, we
constantly seek ways to enhance our areas of expertise, so customers
can be assured that they are in the very best hands.

Expanding
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OUR CORPORATE
INFORMATION

Board of Directors

Tay Tian Hoe Richard
Group Managing Director

Tay Tiang Guan
Executive Director

Tay Tiang Chong Jackson
Executive Director

Yuen Sou Wai
Executive Director

Henry Tan Song Kok
Independent Director

Hee Theng Fong
Independent Director

Phua Tin How
Independent Director

Audit Committee

Henry Tan Song Kok
Chairman

Hee Theng Fong
Member

Phua Tin How
Member

Remuneration Committee

Hee Theng Fong
Chairman

Tay Tian Hoe Richard
Member

Henry Tan Song Kok
Member

Nominating Committee

Phua Tin How
Chairman

Tay Tian Hoe Richard
Member

Henry Tan Song Kok
Member

Joint Company Secretaries

Tan Min-Li LLB Hons, LLM

Gn Jong Yuh Gwendolyn LLB Hons

Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers
8 Cross Street
PWC Building Level 17
Singapore 048424

Partner-in-charge: Tham Tuck Seng
Year of appointment: 2003

Share Registrar

Barbinder & Co Pte Ltd
8 Cross Street
PWC Building Level 11
Singapore 048424

Principal Bankers

DBS Bank

Standard Chartered Bank

Malayan Banking Berhad

Registered Office

2 Pandan Road
Singapore 609254
Telephone : (65) 6264 2155
Facsimile : (65) 6265 9927
Email : yhigroup@yhi.com.sg
Website : www.yhi.com.sg

OUR FINANCIAL
CALENDAR

Announcement of half year unaudited results 2003 26 August 2003

Announcement of third quarter unaudited results 2003 27 November 2003

Financial year-end 31 December 2003

Announcement of full year unaudited results 2003 26 February 2004

Annual General Meeting 22 April 2004



OUR BOARD
OF DIRECTORS

Mr Tay Tian Hoe Richard
Aged 53, Singaporean
Group Managing Director
Member of Board of
Directors
Member of Remuneration
Committee
Member of Nominating
Committee

Mr Tay Tian Hoe Richard
was appointed to the Board
on 26 August 2000.  He is
our key founder and
Managing Director.  Mr Tay
is responsible for setting the
strategic direction and
managing the overall
business of our Group.  He
has more than 30 years of
experience in the business
of sales and distribution
relating to automotive
products and has contributed
significantly to our growth.
He is also responsible for
spearheading our alloy
wheels manufacturing
activities in North East Asia
as well as overseeing our
Group’s alloy wheels
business unit. He is a
member of the Singapore
Institute of Directors.

Mr Tay Tiang Guan
Aged 52, Singaporean
Executive Director (Sales
and Business Development)
Member of Board of
Directors

Mr Tay Tiang Guan was
appointed to the Board on
26 August 2000. He is
responsible for spearheading
our Group’s operations in
ASEAN and business
development in tyres and
industrial products. Mr Tay
has more than 25 years of
experience in automotive
and industrial products
industry. He is a member of
the Singapore Institute of
Directors.

Mr Tay Tiang Chong Jackson
Aged 50, Singaporean
Executive Director
(Export Development)
Member of Board of
Directors

Mr Tay Tiang Chong Jackson
was appointed to the Board
on 22 May 2003.  He has
more than 25 years of
experience in the sale of
automotive products and is
responsible for overseeing
the Export Department of
YHI Corporation (Singapore)
Pte Ltd. He is a member of
the Singapore Institute of
Directors.

Mr Yuen Sou Wai
Aged 50, Singaporean
Executive Director (Finance)
Member of Board of
Directors

Mr Yuen Sou Wai was
appointed to the Board on
22 May 2003.  In addition to
his financial portfolio in the
Group, he is also responsible
for our Group’s operations in
Oceania. Mr Yuen with more
than 23 years of experience
in financial management,
joined the Company in 1996
as our Group Chief Financial
Officer. Prior to joining our
Group, Mr Yuen was the
Regional Finance Director
(Asia Pacific) with Diversey
Corporation, Canada. He was
with the Diversey Group of
Companies since 1988 and
had held several key portfolios
in financial management
within the Asia Pacific Region.
He is a Certified Public
Accountant of the Institute of
Certified Public Accountants
of Singapore and is also a
Fellow of the Chartered
Institute of Management
Accountants (UK).  He is also
a member of the Singapore
Institute of Directors. In
addition, he holds a Master of
Business Administration
Degree from the University of
Leicester, the United Kingdom.

Mr Yuen Sou WaiMr Tay Tiang Chong JacksonMr Tay Tian Hoe Richard Mr Tay Tiang Guan
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Mr Henry Tan Song Kok
Aged 40, Singaporean
Independent, Non-executive Director
Chairman of Audit Committee
Member of Board of Directors
Member of Remuneration Committee
Member of Nominating Committee

Mr Henry Tan Song Kok was appointed
to the Board as an Independent
Director on 22 May 2003 and is also
the Chairman of the Audit Committee.
He is a partner of Nexia Tan and Sitoh,
a firm of Certified Public Accountants
and a director of Nexia TS Pte Ltd.  He
is also a director in several listed and
non-listed companies.  Mr Tan
graduated with a First Class Honours
degree in Bachelor of Accountancy
from National University of Singapore.
He is a member of the Institute of
Certified Public Accountants of
Singapore, Institute of Chartered
Accountants in Australia, Institute of
Internal Auditors, Inc. (Singapore
Chapter) and Singapore Institute of
Directors.

Mr Phua Tin How
Aged 54, Singaporean
Independent, Non-executive Director
Chairman of Nominating Committee
Member of Board of Directors
Member of Audit Committee

Mr. Phua Tin How was appointed to
the Board as an independent director
on 22 May 2003 and is also the
Chairman of the Nominating
Committee. He is currently the Group
President of Straco Corporation
Limited.  He is also a director with
several companies in Singapore and
sits on the Board of CSSD, the company
responsible for developing the Suzhou
Industrial Park and is a director of the
National Environment Agency. He is
also the Chairman of SLF International
and Vice-Chairman of Network China,
International Enterprise Singapore.
He holds a Master in Business
Administration from INSEAD, France
under a Singapore government
scholarship and a Bachelor of
Science (Honours) from the University
of Singapore.

Mr Hee Theng Fong
Aged 50, Singaporean
Independent, Non-executive Director
Chairman of Remuneration Committee
Member of Board of Directors
Member of Audit Committee

Mr. Hee Theng Fong was appointed to
the Board as an independent director
on 22 May 2003 and is also the
Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.  He has been practicing
as an advocate and solicitor of the
Supreme Court of Singapore since
1982. He is also a director of several
companies including Ban Joo &
Company Ltd, Tye Soon Limited,
Datapulse Technology Ltd, Singapore
Chinese Orchestra Limited and
Sinomem Technology Limited.
Mr. Hee graduated from University
of Singapore with a LLB Hons degree.
He is also a Fellow of the Chartered
Institute of Arbitrators (U.K) and
Singapore Institute of Arbitrators.

Mr Hee Theng FongMr Phua Tin HowMr Henry Tan Song Kok



OUR EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Mr Wu Hung-Ling
General Manager
YHI International (Taiwan) Co Ltd

Mr Wu Hung-Ling is the General
Manager of YHI International (Taiwan)
Co Ltd. Mr Wu is responsible for
overseeing our business operations
and alloy wheels manufacturing plant
in Taiwan. Mr Wu has more than 12
years of experience in alloy wheels
manufacturing. Prior to joining YHI
(Taiwan) in 1996 as a Manager and
rejoining as Deputy General Manager
in 2000, Mr Wu was a manager at
Altec Co Ltd and was responsible for
overseeing alloy wheels manufacturing
activities. Mr Wu holds a Bachelor of
Material Engineering degree from the
National University of Cheng-Chong.

The day-to-day operations of our Group are entrusted to an experienced and qualified team of Executive Officers
who are responsible for the different functions of our Group. The particulars of the Executive Officers are set out
below:-

Mr Lu Chun Ya
General Manager
YHI Manufacturing
(Shanghai) Co Ltd

Mr Lu Chun Ya is the General
Manager of YHI Manufacturing
(Shanghai) Co Ltd. Mr Lu is responsible
for overseeing our business operations
and alloy wheels manufacturing plant
in Shanghai. Mr Lu has more than 10
years’ experience relating to alloy
wheels manufacturing activities. He
joined YHI (Taiwan) in 1998 as a
Quality Assurance Manager and was
responsible for overseeing the quality
control and design/development
functions of our manufacturing plant
in Taiwan. Mr Lu holds an Engineering
Degree from Zhong Yuan University,
Taoyuan, Taiwan.

Mr Steve Liew
General Manager
YHI International
Marketing (Shanghai) Co Ltd

Mr Liew Ngok Fook Steve is our
General Manager, Automotive
Business Unit. Mr Liew oversees the
expansion of the automotive products
distribution business of our Group.
Mr Liew joined us in 1996 as General
Manager (Automotive Division) after
4 years with Goodyear Singapore Pte
Ltd. His last held position in Goodyear
Singapore Pte Ltd was that of a
Regional Export Manager (Asia). He
has more than 15 years’ experience
in sales and distribution relating to
automotive products. Mr Liew holds
a Graduate Diploma in Business
Administration from University of
Western Sydney, Australia.

Mr Colin Heng
Deputy General Manager
(Automotive Business Unit - Asean)
YHI Corporation (Singapore) Pte Ltd

Mr Heng Koon Seng Colin is our
Deputy General Manager, Automotive
Business Unit. Mr Heng is responsible
for the sales and marketing,
distribution and profitability relating
to automotive products in ASEAN.
Mr Heng joined us in 1994 as a Sales
Manager, after working as a Sales
Executive in Sunderland Marketing
Pte Ltd for 4 years. Mr Heng holds a
Graduate Diploma in Marketing from
the Singapore Institute of Management
and a Chartered Diploma in Marketing
from the Chartered Institute of
Marketing (UK).

Mr Robert Tan
Deputy General Manager
(Alloy Wheels Business Unit - Asean)
YHI Corporation (Singapore) Pte Ltd

Mr Tan Yong Quan Robert is our
Deputy General Manager, Alloy
Wheels Business Unit. He is
responsible for the sales and
marketing, distribution and profitability
relating to alloy wheels in ASEAN.
He first joined our Group as a Sales
Engineer in 1991. Prior to joining us,
Mr Tan was a Senior Electronic
Technician with the Republic of
Singapore Navy. Mr Tan holds an
Advanced Diploma in Information
System Technology from the Singapore
Polytechnic and a Bachelor of
Commerce (Major in Marketing and
Finance) from Curtin University of
Technology, Perth, Australia.
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SINGAPORE
YHI Corporation (Singapore) Pte Ltd
YHI Manufacturing (Singapore) Pte Ltd

No. 2 Pandan Road
Singapore 609254
Tel : (65) 6264 2155
Fax : (65) 6265 9927
Email : yhigroup@yhi.com.sg
Website : www.yhi.com.sg

MALAYSIA
YHI (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd

No. 15 Jalan U1/23, Seksyen U1,
HICOM-Glenmarie Industrial Park,
40150 Shah Alam
Selangor Darul Ehsan, Malaysia
Tel : (3) 7804 9880
Fax : (3) 7804 9878
Email : yhim@yhim.com.my

CHINA
YHI Manufacturing (Shanghai) Co Ltd
YHI International Marketing (Shanghai)
Co Ltd

No. 611 Shen Fu Road,
Xin Zhuang Industry Zone,
Shanghai, PRC
Tel : (86) 21-6489 6655
Fax : (85) 21-6489 4455 /

(85) 21-6489 6273
Email : lqq@yhias.com / 

im@yhias.com

TAIWAN
YHI International (Taiwan) Co Ltd

No. 859, Sec. 2, Yang-Hu Road,
Yang-Mei, Taoyuan,
Taiwan
Tel : (886) 3-472 6260
Fax : (886) 3-472 6263
Email : webmaster@yhitaiwan.com.tw

HONG KONG
YHI (Hong Kong) Co Ltd
YHI (China) Strategy Co Ltd

Unit A & B, 11/F Dynamic Cargo Centre,
188 Yeung Uk Road,
Tsuen Wan, New Territories,
Hong Kong
Tel : (852) 2727 1883
Fax : (852) 2727 1301
Email : yhihkcl@netvigator.com

AUSTRALIA
YHI (Australia) Pty Ltd
YHI Power Pty Ltd

1044 – 1046 Canley Vale Road,
Wetherill Park, NSW 2164,
Sydney, Australia
Tel : (61) 2-9756 6688
Fax : (61) 2-9756 6288
Email : yhitony@ozemail.com.au/ 

dchen1@bigpond.net.au

NEW ZEALAND
YHI (New Zealand) Ltd

Unit A, 140 Plunket Avenue,
Manukau City,
Auckland,
New Zealand
Tel : (64) 9-278 1712
Fax : (64) 9-279 4855
Email : chris@yhi.co.nz

OUR SUBSIDIARIES
WHERE WE HAVE A GEOGRAPHICAL PRESENCE



OUR CORPORATE STRUCTURE
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2003

OUR DISTRIBUTION
NETWORK

Batteries (Industrial & Automotive)Tyres

The main brand that we distribute is Yokohama from
Japan, a well-known brand that we have been distributing
since 1974. Other key brands include Nankang car and
truck tyres from Taiwan and Tornado tyres from Indonesia.

Alloy Wheels

The key brands that we represent are Enkei from Japan,
OZ from Italy and Hart Wheels from Japan. We also
distribute our own brand of alloy wheels - Advanti Racing.

We carry an extensive range of batteries suitable for
automotive, commercial and industrial use. The leading
brands that we represent for rechargeable batteries include
Hitachi from Japan, Trojan and Deka from USA, CSB from
Taiwan and Vision from China. For automotive batteries,
we represent Hitachi Automotive Batteries in China and
various other brands in Asean

Golf Buggies

We hold the distributorship of Ezgo golf buggies for
Singapore and Malaysia.

YHI International Limited

YHI (New Zealand)
Limited

YHI (Malaysia)
Sdn Bhd

YHI Corporation
(Singapore) Pte Ltd

YHI Power
Pty Limited

YHI (Australia)
Pty Limited
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YHI (Hong Kong)
Co Limited

YHI International
(Taiwan) Co., Ltd

YHI International
Marketing (Shanghai)

Co., Ltd

YHI Manufacturing
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd

YHI (China)
Strategy Company

Limited

YHI Manufacturing
(Singapore) Pte Ltd

Singapore

Malaysia

China

Hong Kong

Taiwan

Australia

New Zealand



Growth
Defined
At YHI, growth knows no boundaries. Over the years, YHI has established
a firm foothold in the region as preferred partner in the automotive and
industrial products industry. With the courage and vision to forge ahead,
we will continue to explore new terrains, staying keenly attuned to
opportunities, and ever ready to turn new possibilities into realities.

Expanding
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PERFORMANCE REVIEW

The war in Iraq and the unexpected SARS outbreak created
a general negative impact that resulted in economic
uncertainty in the first half of FY2003. However, in spite of
a sluggish economic environment, the Group delivered a
commendable performance in both sales and profitability.
The Group’s proforma sales for FY2003 of S$220.7 million
was S$43.8 million or 24.7% higher than the S$176.9 million
recorded in FY2002 while proforma net profit after tax
increased by 28.0% from S$11.4 million to S$14.6 million
in FY2003. The Group continues to expand its manufacturing
activities particularly those in the Shanghai operations.
Proforma profit after tax from manufacturing business
accounted for 34% of the Group’s total in FY2003 as
compared to 28% in FY2002.

The Group
delivered a

commendable
performance in
both sales and
profitability...

REVIEW OF
OUR OPERATIONS

PERCENTAGE PAT CONTRIBUTION
BY BUSINESS SEGMENT

Distribution
Business PAT

72%

28%
Manufacturing
Business PAT

FY 2002

66%

34%

Distribution
Business PAT

Manufacturing
Business PAT

FY 2003



DISTRIBUTION BUSINESS

Sales from the distribution business increased by
approximately S$25.8 million or 19.0% from S$136.1 million
in FY2002 to S$161.9 million in FY2003.  The increase was
primarily due to increase from ASEAN and Oceanic operations
of S$9.3 million and S$13.8 million respectively. Our
distribution business in China was affected by the delayed
commencement in production in Yokohama Hangzhou
factory due to the SARS outbreak as most of the Japanese
engineers were under instruction from their Head Office to
return back to Japan.

REVIEW OF
OUR OPERATIONS

Profit after tax and minority interests from the distribution
business increased by approximately S$1.4 million or 17.1%
to S$9.6 million in FY2003 as compared to S$8.2 million
in FY2002 primarily due to increase in gross profit in Asean
and Oceanic operations.

SALES PERFORMANCE
(S$’million)

136.1

161.9

FY 2002 FY 2003

PAT PERFORMANCE
(S$’million)

8.2

9.6

FY 2002 FY 2003

Tyres

Alloy Wheels

Industrial Batteries

Golf Buggies

Mr Richard Tay in YOKOHAMA Hangzhou plant.



...Shanghai
operations

recorded
72.5%

increase in
sales...
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MANUFACTURING BUSINESS

Sales from the manufacturing business increased by
approximately S$18.0 million or 44.1% from S$40.8 million
in FY2002 to S$58.8 million in FY2003.  In line with the
increase from three to four production lines, Shanghai
operations recorded an increase of S$17.7 million or
72.5% increase in sales as compared to FY2002. Our
Taiwan operations continue to be profitable with its one
production line. Profit after tax from the manufacturing
business increased from S$3.2 million in FY2002 to S$5.0
million in FY2003.

SALES PERFORMANCE
(S$’million)

40.8

58.8

FY 2002 FY 2003

PAT PERFORMANCE
(S$’million)

3.2

5.0

FY 2002 FY 2003

Our manufacturing facilities in our Taiwan plant.

Our manufacturing facilities in our Shanghai plant.



...will continue
to leverage its

strategic
market

position to
capture new

opportunities.

REVIEW OF
OUR OPERATIONS

LOOKING AHEAD

The outlook of the global economy continues to be good.
With forecasts that the economy will pick up further, the
Group expects higher sales from our subsidiaries for both
their distribution and manufacturing businesses.

The Group will continue to focus its efforts on the alloy
wheels market particularly in North America, Europe and
Japan, while at the same time staying attuned to business
prospects in emerging markets like China.

In response to an increasing global demand for chrome
wheels and in line with its commitment to provide quality,
customer-driven solutions, YHI is looking into setting up a
metal surface facility for alloy wheels in China via a joint
venture arrangement by the second quarter in 2004.

And as part of its long-term growth strategy to tap into the
rapidly growing automotive market in China, plans are in
the pipelines to initiate the Group’s 5th alloy wheels
production line by the first half of 2004. This will facilitate
higher productivity levels, and place the Group in good
stead to meet the demands of China’s replacement market
effectively. Additionally, the Group is looking into establishing
its 6th production line by the end of 2004, targeted primarily
at the burgeoning export market.

With Hangzhou Yokohama Tire Co Ltd expediting its
expansion plans to double its current tyre production capacity
from the existing 700,000 pieces to 1.4 million pieces by
2005, the Group is poised to supply more tyres to meet the
strong China domestic market demands. Consequently, the
Group will step up its marketing efforts by establishing new
Yokohama concept stores and strengthening its distribution
network in the Yangtze Delta.

Further enhancing its distribution portfolio, the Group has
entered into a strategic alliance with Hitachi which enables
YHI to distribute Hitachi’s automotive batteries in China.
This will undoubtedly further contribute towards reinforcing
the Group’s growing presence in China.

YHI has successfully maintained its profitable track record
in the face of a less-than-favourable operating environment
in 2003. Going forward, the Group will continue to leverage
its strategic market position to capture new opportunities,
as well as strengthen its portfolio of products and services
to sharpen its competitive edge and ensure sustainable
growth.

Our Advanti showroom in Singapore.
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Attendance at Board Meetings

Name No. of No. of
Meetings meetings
held attended

Tay Tian Hoe Richard 3 3
Tay Tiang Guan 3 3
Tay Tiang Chong Jackson 3 3
Yuen Sou Wai 3 3
Henry Tan Song Kok 3 3
Hee Theng Fong 3 3
Phua Tin How 3 3

Attendance at Audit Committee

Name No. of No. of
Meetings meetings
held attended

Henry Tan Song Kok 3 3
Hee Theng Fong 3 3
Phua Tin How 3 3

Attendance at Remuneration
Committee

Name No. of No. of
Meetings meetings
held attended

Tay Tian Hoe Richard 2 2
Hee Theng Fong 2 2
Henry Tan Song Kok 2 2

Attendance at Nominating
Committee

Name No. of No. of
Meetings meetings
held attended

Tay Tian Hoe Richard 2 2
Phua Tin How 2 2
Henry Tan Song Kok 2 2

All Directors are updated regularly concerning any changes
in company policies, risks management, key changes in the
relevant regulatory requirements and accounting standards.
The Company also provides ongoing education on Board
processes, governance and best practices.  Newly appointed
Directors are briefed by management on the business
activities of the Group and its strategic directions.  They are
also provided with relevant information on the company’s
policies and procedures.

Principle 2: Board Composition and Balance

The Board comprises four executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. Key information
regarding the Directors is given in “Our Board of Directors”
section of this annual report.  The independence of each
Director will be reviewed annually by the Nominating
Committee.  The Nominating Committee is of the view that

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of YHI International
Limited (the “Company”) recognises the importance of
corporate governance in ensuring greater transparency,
protecting the interests of its shareholders as well as
strengthening investors’ confidence in its management and
financial reporting and is committed to maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance within the Group.

The SGX-ST’s Listing Manual requirement requires that an
issuer who holds its Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) on or
after 1 January 2003 (the “effective date”) should describe its
corporate governance practices with specific reference to the
Code of Corporate Governance (“Code”) in its annual report.

This statement outlines the main corporate governance
practices that were in place throughout the financial year,
with specific references made to each of the principles of
the Code in the annual report.

A. BOARD MATTERS

Principle 1 of the Code: Board’s Conduct of its Affairs

The Board comprises four executive Directors and three
independent Directors, all having the right competencies
and diversity of experience enabling them to effectively
contribute to the Group.

The Board holds meetings on a regular basis throughout the
year to approve the Group’s key strategic plans as well as
major investments, disposals and funding decisions.  The
Board is also responsible for the overall corporate
governance of the Group.

The Company has adopted a set of internal controls and
guidelines for investments and capital expenditures. To further
enhance these guidelines, the Board is in the process of
establishing a set of new guidelines to put in place financial
authorisation limits for approving investments, divestments and
capital expenditures at board level and to set out approval sub-
limits at management level to facilitate operational efficiency.

The Board conducts regular scheduled meetings on a
quarterly basis. When circumstances require, ad-hoc
meetings are arranged.  Board meetings are conducted in
Singapore and attendance by Directors is regular. In the
course of the year under review, the attendance of the
Directors at meetings of the Board and Board committees,
as well as the frequency of such meetings, is as follows:-

Board of
Directors

Nominating Committee

Remuneration Committee

Audit Committee
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the current Board, with independent non-executive Directors
making up at least one-third of the Board, has a strong and
independent element that is able to exercise objective
judgement on corporate affairs independently from the
management.  The Nominating Committee is also of the
view that no individual or small group of individual
dominates the Board’s decision making process.

The Board is of the view that the current board size of seven
Directors is appropriate, taking into account the nature and
scope of the Company’s operations.

The Board considers that its composition of independent
non-executive Directors provide an effective Board with a
mix of knowledge, business contacts and successful business
and commercial experience.  This balance is important in
ensuring that the strategies proposed by the executive
management are fully discussed and examined, taking into
account the long term interests of the Group.

Principle 3: Role of Chairman and Group
Managing Director

Currently, we do not have a Chairman of the Board.
However, a Chairman is usually appointed for our Board
meetings and the Chairman exercises control over quality,
quantity and timeliness of the flow of information between
management and the Board.

Our Group Managing Director is Mr Tay Tian Hoe Richard.
He has full executive responsibilities of the overall business
directions and operational decisions of our Group.

All major decisions made by our Group Managing Director
are reviewed by the Audit Committee.  Our Group Managing
Director’s performance and appointment to the Board is
being reviewed annually by the Nominating Committee and
his remuneration package is being reviewed periodically
by the Remuneration Committee.

Principle 4: Board Membership

Mr Phua Tin How, an independent non-executive Director,
is the Chairman of the Nominating Committee.  The
Nominating Committee comprises two independent
Directors, Messrs Phua Tin How and Henry Tan Song Kok
and one executive Director, Mr Tay Tian Hoe Richard.

The responsibilities of the Nominating Committee are to
determine the criteria for identifying candidates and
reviewing nominations for the appointment of Directors to
the Board and also to decide how the Board’s performance
may be evaluated and propose objective performance
criteria for the Board’s approval.  The Nominating Committee
regulates its own procedures and also maintains records of
the deliberations and proceedings of the Nominating
Committee.

We believe that Board renewal must be an ongoing process,
to both ensure good governance, and maintain relevance

to the changing needs of the Company and business. Our
Articles require at least one-third of our Directors (excluding
the Managing Director) to retire and subject themselves to
re-election by shareholders at every AGM.  In other words,
no Director stays in office for more than three years without
being re-elected by shareholders.

Principle 5: Board Performance

The Nominating Committee will use its best efforts to ensure
that Directors appointed to our Board possess the relevant
necessary background, experience and knowledge and that
each Director brings to the Board an independent and
objective perspective to enable balanced and well-
considered decisions to be made.

A formal review of the Board’s performance will be
undertaken collectively and individually by the Board
annually and informally by the Nominating Committee with
inputs from the other Board members and the Group
Managing Director.

We believe that apart from the fiduciary duties (i.e. act in
good faith, with due diligence and care and in the best
interests of the Company and its shareholders), the Board’s
key responsibilities are to set strategic directions and ensuring
that the long term objective of enhancing shareholders’
wealth is achieved. The Board's performance is measured
by its ability to provide guidance and support to the
Management especially in times of crisis and to steer the
Company towards profitable directions.  In doing so, the
Board will take into consideration the financial indicators
set out in paragraph 5.2 of the Code of Corporate
Governance as guidelines for evaluation of the Board's
performance.

Principle 6: Access to Information

In order to ensure that the Board is able to discharge its
responsibilities, the management is required to provide
adequate and timely information to the Board on Board
affairs and issues that require the Board’s decision as well
as ongoing reports relating to operational and financial
performance of the Company.

The Board has separate and independent access to the senior
management and the Company Secretary at all times.
Should Directors, whether as a group or individually, need
independent professional advice, the Company Secretary
will, upon directions by the Board, appoint a professional
advisor selected by the group or the individual to render the
advice.  The cost of such professional advice will be borne
by the Company.

The Company Secretary has attended 3 Board meetings and
3 audit committee meetings held for the financial year.

Please refer to “Our Corporate Information” section of the
annual report for the composition of the Company’s Board
of Directors and Board committees.
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Name of Director S$0 S$250,001 S$500,001 Above Directors’ Percentage Percentage No. of Stock
To To To S$1,000,000 Fees  of Variable of Fixed options

S$250,000 S$500,000 S$1,000,000 (S$ ‘000) Remuneration Remuneration granted as
(including 31 December
 Directors’ 2003

fees) (exercise
price)

Tay Tian Hoe Richard - - - • - 75.0% 25.0% N.A.
Tay Tiang Guan - - • - - 79.8% 20.2% N.A.
Tay Tiang Chong Jackson - - • - - 78.3% 21.7% N.A.
Yuen Sou Wai - - • - - 73.8% 26.2% N.A.
Henry Tan Song Kok - - - - 15 - - N.A.
Hee Theng Fong - - - - 15 - - N.A.
Phua Tin How - - - - 15 - - N.A.

B. REMUNERATION MATTERS

Principle 7: Procedures for Developing
Remuneration Policies

Principle 8: Level and Mix of Remuneration

The function of the Remuneration Committee is to review
the remuneration of the Executive Directors of the Company
and to provide a greater degree of objectivity and
transparency in the setting of remuneration.

Mr Hee Theng Fong, an independent Director is the
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee.  The
Remuneration Committee comprises two independent
Directors, Messrs Hee Theng Fong and Henry Tan Song Kok
and one executive Director Mr Tay Tian Hoe Richard.

The Remuneration Committee reviews and recommends to
the Board, in consultation with management, a framework
of all aspects of remuneration.  The Remuneration Committee
also determines the specific remuneration packages and
terms of employment for each of the executive Directors of
the Company including those employees related to the
executive Directors and controlling shareholders of the
Company as well as the senior executives.

The executive Directors do not receive Directors’ fees.  The
executive Directors entered into service contracts with the
company on 16 May 2003 for a period of two years,
renewable automatically thereafter.  The service contracts
provide for termination by either the executive Director or
the Company upon giving written notice of not less than six
months.

The Remuneration Committee has access to expert
professional advice on human resource matters whenever
there is a need to consult externally.  In its deliberations,
the Remuneration Committee takes into consideration
industry practices and norms in compensation in addition
to the Company’s relative performance and the performance
of the individual Directors.  No Director will be involved in
deciding his own remuneration.

The performance-related elements of remuneration should
form a significant proportion of the total remuneration

package of the executive Director.  The remuneration of
non-executive Directors should be determined by his
contribution to the Company, taking into account factors
such as efforts and time spent as well as his responsibilities
on the Board.  The Board will recommend the remuneration
of the non-executive Directors for approval at the AGM.

We have in place the YHI Share Option Scheme (“Scheme”)
on 22 May 2003. However, no option has been granted
pursuant to the Scheme in the past financial year.

The Scheme will be administered by a committee comprising
the following members:-

Hee Theng Fong (Chairman)
Henry Tan Song Kok

* Tay Tian Hoe Richard

* Mr Tay Tian Hoe Richard is our executive Director and
controlling shareholder of the Company and thus by the
policy of the Scheme is not entitled to participate in the
Scheme. Details of the Scheme can be obtained from our
Prospectus dated 24 June 2003.

Principle 9: Disclosure on Remuneration

Our executive Directors’ remuneration consists of their
salary, allowances, bonuses, and profit sharing awards
conditional upon their meeting certain profit before tax
targets.  The details of their remuneration package are given
below.

Our independent non-executive Directors have remuneration
packages which consist of a Directors’ fee component.  The
Directors’ fees are based on a scale of fees divided into basic
retainer fees as a Director and additional fees for serving on
Board committees as the chairman of the committee.
Directors’ fees for independent non-executive Directors are
subject to the approval of shareholders at the AGM.

The report on Directors’ Remuneration for financial year
2003 is given below:-



accounting or related financial management expertise of
experience.

The Audit Committee holds periodic meetings and reviews
primarily the following, where relevant, with the executive
Directors and external auditors:-

(a) the audit plan of our company’s external auditors;

(b) the external auditors’ reports;

(c) the co-operation given by our officers to the external
auditors;

(d) the scope and results of the internal audit procedures;

(e) the financial statements of our Company and our Group
before their submission to our Board;

(f) nominate external auditors for appointment;

(g) our Group’s compliance with such functions and duties
as may be required under the relevant statutes or the
Listing Manual, and by such amendments made thereto
from time to time;

(h) interested person transactions; and

(i) the remuneration packages of employees who are related
to our Directors and/or substantial shareholders.

In addition to the above, the Audit Committee shall
commission and review the f indings of internal
investigations into matters where there is any suspected
fraud or irregularity, or failure of internal controls or
infringement of any Singapore law, rule or regulation which
has or is likely to have a material impact on our Group’s
operating results and/or financial position.  Each member
of the Audit Committee shall abstain from voting on any
resolutions and making any recommendations and/or
participating in any deliberations of the Audit Committee
in respect of matters in which he is interested.

The Audit Committee has conducted an annual review of
the volume of non-audit services to satisfy itself that the
nature and extent of such services will not prejudice the
independence and objectivity of the auditors before
confirming their re-nomination.

Principle 12: Internal Controls

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the overall
internal control framework, but recognises that no cost effective
internal control system will preclude all errors and irregularities,
as a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide
only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.  During the year, the Audit Committe, on
behalf of the Board, has reviewed the effectiveness of the internal
control system put in place by the management and is satisfied
that there are adequate internal controls in the Company.  The
Directors regularly review the effectiveness of all internal
controls, including operational controls.

Principle 13: Internal Audits

The Audit Committee’s responsibility in overseeing that the
Company’s internal controls and risk management systems
are adequate and will be complemented by the work of the

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Remuneration of Key Executive Officers

Details of remuneration* paid to the top five executive officers
(who are not Directors of the company) of the Group for the
financial year 2003 are set out below:-

Name of Key Executive S$0 S$250,001 No. of Stock
To To  Options granted

S$250,000 S$500,000 as at
31 December

2003
(exercise price)

Liew Ngok Fook Steve • - N.A.
Heng Koon Seng Colin • - N.A.
Tan Yong Quan Robert • - N.A.
Wu Hung-Ling • - N.A.
Lu Chun Ya • - N.A.

* Remuneration amounts are inclusive of salary, bonus, allowances and
Central Provident Fund contributions.  There was no share options granted
to employees during the financial year.

Employees whose Remuneration exceed S$100,000 and are
Immediate Family Members of our Executive Directors

Name of Key Executive S$0 S$250,001 No. of Stock
To To  Options granted

S$250,000 S$500,000 as at
31 December

2003
(exercise price)

Tay Thiam Seng + • - N.A.
Tay Soek Eng Margaret + • - N.A.

+ Mr Tay Thiam Seng and Mdm Tay Soek Eng Margaret are siblings of our
Executive Directors, Mr Tay Tian Hoe Richard, Mr Tay Tiang Guan and
Mr Tay Tiang Chong Jackson.

C. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Principle 10:  Accountability

The Board believes that it should promote best practices as
a mean to build an excellent business for our shareholders
as they are accountable to shareholders for the Company
and the Group’s performance.

The Board is mindful of its obligations to provide timely and
fair disclosure of material information in compliance with
statutory reporting requirements.  Price sensitive information
is first publicly released, either before the Company meets
with any group of investors or analysts or simultaneously
with such meetings.  For FY2004 onwards, we will be
adopting quarterly reporting as required by the Code.
Financial results and annual reports will be announced or
issued within the mandatory period.

Principle 11: Audit Committee

Mr Henry Tan Song Kok, an independent Director is the
Chairman of the Audit Committee.  The Audit Committee
comprises three independent Directors, Messrs Henry Tan
Song Kok, Hee Theng Fong and Phua Tin How.  At least two
members of the Audit Committee have the appropriate
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Internal Auditor (“IA”).  The IA reports directly to the chairman
of the Audit Committee on audit matters.  The Audit
Committee meets with the IA at least once during the year
without the presence of management.  The Audit Committee
also reviews IA’s reports on a quarterly basis.  The Audit
Committee also reviews and approves the annual IA plans
and resources to ensure that the IA has the necessary
resources to adequately perform its functions.  The IA has
adopted the Standards for Professional Practice of Internal
Auditing set by The Institute of Internal Auditors.

To ensure the adequacy of the internal audit functions, the
Audit Committee will review the IA’s activities periodically.

D. INTERESTED PERSONS TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted an internal policy in respect of
any transaction with interested persons and has set out the
procedures for review and approval of the Company’s
interested person transactions.

In order to ensure that the Company complies with Chapter
9 of the SGX-ST Listing Manual on interested persons
transactions, the Audit Committee meets quarterly to review
all interested party transactions of the Company. However,
if the Company enters into an interested person transaction,
the Audit Committee would ensure the compliance of the
relevant rules under Chapter 9.

various media as well as our corporate website (http://www.
yhi.com.sg).

We support the Code’s principle to encourage shareholder
participation.  Shareholders are encouraged to attend the AGM to
ensure a high level of accountability and to stay informed of the
Company’s strategy and goals.  Notice of the AGM is despatched to
shareholders, together with explanatory notes or a circular on items
of special business (if necessary), at least 14 clear days before the
meeting.  The Board welcomes questions from shareholders who
have an opportunity to raise issues either informally or formally
before or at the AGM.  The Chairman of the Audit, Remuneration
and Nominating Committees are normally available at the meeting
to answer those questions relating to the work of these committees.

F. DEALING IN SECURITIES

The Company has adopted internal codes pursuant to the
SGX-ST Best Practices Guide applicable to all its officers in
relation to dealings in the Company’s securities.  Its officers
are not allowed to deal in the Company’s shares during the
period commencing one month before the announcement
of the Company’s quarterly, half-yearly and full year results
and ending on the date of the announcement of the results.

Directors and executives are also expected to observe insider
trading laws at all times even when dealing with securities
within permitted trading period.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Name of interested person Aggregate value of all interested person Aggregate value of all interested person
transactions during the financial year under review transactions conducted under shareholders’

(excluding transactions less than $100,000 mandate pursuant to Rule 920 (excluding transactions
and transactions conducted under shareholders’ less than $100,000)

mandate pursuant to Rule 920)
S$’000 S$’000

Sales to Huy Phat Trading & Services Co (1) 644 -

Management fee received/receivable 120 -
from YHI Holdings Pte Ltd (2)

Notes
(1) Our controlling shareholder, YHI Holdings, appointed Huy Phat Trading & Services Co as their authorised distributor in Vietnam. YHI Holdings has

made an advance of US$36,000 to Huy Phat Trading & Services Co in FY2000 on the understanding that the loan will be capitalised at the option of
YHI Holdings into shares in the capital of Huy Phat Trading & Services Co.

(2) Some of our executive directors and executive officers have provided corporate management and financial planning services to YHI Holdings and LTH
Logistics (S) Pte Ltd. Some of our employees have provided finance and administrative, human resource, logistics, customer service and computer
support services to YHI Holdings and LTH Logistics (S) Pte Ltd. We have charged YHI Holdings and LTH Logistics (S) Pte Ltd managment and support
service fees. Management fees to LTH Logistics (S) Pte Ltd is charged through YHI Holdings.

E. COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Principle 14: Communication with Shareholders
Principle 15: Greater Shareholder Participation

We believe in regular and timely communication with
shareholders as part of our organisation development to build
systems and procedures that will enable us to operate globally.

The Company does not practise selective disclosure.  In line
with continuous obligations of the Company pursuant to the
SGX-ST Listing Manual and the Companies Act (Cap 50,
Singapore), the Board’s policy is that all shareholders should
be equally and timely informed of all major developments
that impact the Company or the Group.  It is also the Board’s
policy that all corporate news, strategies and announcements
are promptly disseminated through MASNET, press releases,

G. BEST PRACTICES GUIDE

The Board confirms that during the financial year ended 31
December 2003, the Company has complied materially with
the Best Practices Guide issued by SGX-ST and that internal
controls are adequate for its current operations.

H. MATERIAL  CONTRACTS

There are no material contracts entered into by the Company
or its subsidiaries for the benefit of the Directors or controlling
shareholders during the financial year ended 31 December
2003.



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
For the financial year ended 31 December 2003

The directors present their report to the members together with the audited financial statements of the Group for the
financial year ended 31 December 2003 and the balance sheet of the Company at 31 December 2003.

The YHI International Limited Group was formed on 16 May 2003 pursuant to a Restructuring Exercise (note 2).  Accordingly,
results for the Group are for the financial period from 16 May 2003 to 31 December 2003.

Directors

The directors of the Company in office at the date of this report are:

Tay Tian Hoe Richard
Tay Tiang Guan
Tay Tiang Chong Jackson (appointed on 22/05/2003)
Yuen Sou Wai (appointed on 22/05/2003)
Henry Tan Song Kok (appointed on 22/05/2003)
Hee Theng Fong (appointed on 22/05/2003)
Phua Tin How (appointed on 22/05/2003)

Arrangements to enable directors to acquire shares or debentures

Neither at the end of nor at any time during the financial year was the Company a party to any arrangement whose object
was to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
For the financial year ended 31 December 2003

Directors’ interests in shares or debentures

(a) The interests of the directors holding office at the end of the financial year in the share capital of the Company and
related corporations, as recorded in the register of directors’ shareholdings, were as follows:

Holdings in which
Holdings registered a director is deemed
in name of director to have an interest

At At
1.1.2003 or 1.1.2003 or

date of date of
At At appointment, At At appointment,

21.01.2004 31.12.2003 if later 21.01.2004 31.12.2003 if later

The Company
- Ordinary shares of $1 each*

Tay Tian Hoe Richard - - 1 - - -
Tay Tiang Guan - - 1 - - -

- Ordinary shares of $0.20 each
Tay Tian Hoe Richard - - * 170,579,845 170,579,845 -
Tay Tiang Guan 50,000 50,000 * - - -
Tay Tiang Chong Jackson - - - - - -
Yuen Sou Wai 100,000 100,000 - - - -
Hee Theng Fong 100,000 100,000 - - - -
Henry Tan Song Kok 100,000 100,000 - - - -
Phua Tin How 100,000 100,000 - - - -

YHI Holdings Pte Ltd
- Ordinary shares of $1 each

Tay Tian Hoe Richard 330,000 330,000 330,000 - - -
Tay Tiang Guan 159,000 159,000 159,000 - - -
Tay Tiang Chong Jackson 159,000 159,000 159,000 - - -

* During the year, the Company sub-divided each ordinary share of $1 each in its authorised and issued share capital into 5 ordinary shares of
$0.20 each (note 24).

Directors’ contractual benefits

Since the end of the previous financial year, no director has received or become entitled to receive a benefit by reason of a
contract made by the Company or a related corporation with the director or with a firm of which he is a member or with a
company in which he has a substantial financial interest except as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements and in
this report, and except that Mr Tay Tian Hoe Richard, Mr Tay Tiang Guan and Mr Tay Tiang Chong Jackson have employment
relationships with the ultimate holding corporation, and have received remuneration in that capacity.
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2003

Share options

YHI Share Option Scheme

The YHI Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”) in respect of unissued shares of $0.20 each in the Company was approved
by the shareholders of the Company at an Extraordinary General Meeting on 22 May 2003. The purpose of the Scheme is
to provide an opportunity for executive directors and employees of the Group to participate in the equity of the Company
so as to motivate them towards better performance through increased dedication and loyalty. The members of the
Remuneration Committee administering the Scheme are Tay Tian Hoe Richard, Hee Theng Fong and Henry Tan Song Kok.

The aggregate number of shares issuable under the Scheme shall not exceed 15% of the issued shares of the Company. The
number of Shares comprised in any options to be offered to a participant in the Scheme shall be determined at the absolute
discretion of the Remuneration Committee, who shall take into account criteria such as the rank, the past performance,
years of service, potential for future development and contribution of the participant.

Offers of options made to grantees, if not accepted by the grantees within 30 days will lapse. The Scheme shall continue in
operation for a maximum of 10 years commencing on the date which the Scheme is adopted by the Company in general
meeting, unless otherwise extended by the shareholders by ordinary resolution in general meeting.

There were no options granted during the financial year to subscribe for unissued shares of the Company, or the subsidiaries.

No shares were issued during the year by virtue of the exercise of options to take up unissued shares of the Company, or its
subsidiaries.

There were no unissued shares of the Company and the subsidiaries under the option at the end of the financial year.

Auditors

The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers, have expressed their willingness to accept re-appointment.

On behalf of the directors

TAY TIAN HOE RICHARD
Director

YUEN SOU WAI
Director

30 March 2004
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STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS

In the opinion of the directors,

(a) the balance sheet of the Company and the financial statements of the Group as set out on pages 32 to 71 are
drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at 31 December
2003 and of the results of the business, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group for the financial year ended
31 December 2003; and

(b) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts
as and when they fall due.

On behalf of the directors

TAY TIAN HOE RICHARD
Director

YUEN SOU WAI
Director

30 March 2004



AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
YHI INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

We have audited the balance sheet of YHI International Limited as at 31 December 2003 and the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2003 set out on pages 32 to 71.  These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s directors.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing.  Those Standards require that we plan and
perform our audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion,

(a) the accompanying balance sheet of the Company and consolidated financial statements of the Group are properly
drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, Cap 50 (“the Act”) and Singapore Financial
Reporting Standards so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2003, and the results, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group for the financial year ended on
that date; and

(b) the accounting and other records (excluding registers) required by the Act to be kept by the Company and by those
subsidiaries incorporated in Singapore of which we are the auditors have been properly kept in accordance with
the provisions of the Act.

We have considered the financial statements and auditors’ report of the subsidiaries of which we have not acted as auditors,
being financial statements included in the consolidated financial statements.  The names of the subsidiaries are stated in
note 14 to the financial statements.

We are satisfied that the financial statements of the subsidiaries that have been consolidated with the financial statements
of the Company are in form and content appropriate and proper for the purposes of the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements and we have received satisfactory information and explanations as required by us for those purposes.

The auditors’ reports on the financial statements of the subsidiaries were not subject to any qualification and in respect of
subsidiaries incorporated in Singapore did not include any comment made under section 207(3) of the Act.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Singapore, 30 March 2004
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
For the financial year ended 31 December 2003

2003
Note $’000

Sales 4 144,998
Cost of sales (105,816)
Gross profit 39,182

Other operating income 597
Distribution costs (11,015)
Administrative expenses (13,277)
Other operating expenses (1,202)
Profit from operations 5 14,285

Finance costs - net 6 (1,213)
Profit before tax 13,072

Tax 8 (2,388)
Profit from ordinary activities before minority interests 10,684

Minority interests 27 (641)
Net profit 10,043

Basic and diluted earnings per share 9 7.32 cents

Note :

The YHI International Limited Group was formed on 16 May 2003 pursuant to a  Restructuring Exercise (note 2).  Accordingly,
results for the Group are for the financial period  from 16 May 2003 to 31 December 2003.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
Auditors’ Report - Page 31



BALANCE SHEETS
As at 31 December 2003

The Group The Company
Note 2003 2003 2002
Note $’000 $’000 $’000

ASSETS

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 10 24,394 14,064 -
Receivables 11 43,932 33,891 -
Inventories 12 37,229 - -
Other current assets 13 2,460 5 -

108,015 47,960 -

Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries 14 - 34,963 -
Other investments 15 128 - -
Property, plant and equipment 16 41,924 - -
Intangibles 17 942 - -
Deferred tax assets 8 1,534 20 -

44,528 34,983 -

Total assets 152,543 82,943 -

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 18 24,431 4,197 3
Borrowings 19 23,223 - -
Current tax liabilities 8 1,358 8 -
Dividends 21 2,314 - -
Provision 22 290 - -

51,616 4,205 3

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 19 9,965 - -
Deferred tax liabilities 8 2,304 - -

12,269 - -

Total liabilities 63,885 4,205 3

Net assets/(liabilities) 88,658 78,738 (3)

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Share capital 24 48,716 48,716 *
Share premium 28,285 28,285 -
Foreign currency translation reserve 180 - -
Retained earnings/(Accumulated loss) 25 9,317 1,737 (3)
General reserve 26 723 - -
Total shareholders’ equity 87,221 78,738 (3)
Minority interests 27 1,437 - -

88,658 78,738 (3)

* Represents 2 ordinary shares of $1 per share of the Company.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
Auditors’ Report - Page 31
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the financial year ended 31 December 2003

Foreign Retained
currency earnings /

Share Share translation (Accumulated General
capital premium reserve loss) reserve Total

Note $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Balance at 1 January 2003 # *   - - (3) - (3)

Net exchange differences on
  translation of financial statements
  of foreign subsidiaries - - 180 - - 180
Net gain not recognised in
  income statement - - 180 - - 180
Net profit - - - 10,043 - 10,043

Total recognised gains
for the financial year - - 180 10,043 - 10,223

Transfer to general reserve - - - (723) 723 -
Issue of shares pursuant to
  Restructuring Exercise 24 34,116 - - - - 34,116
Issue of ordinary shares pursuant
  to initial public offering 24 11,600 17,400 - - - 29,000
Issue of placement shares 24 3,000 13,425 - - - 16,425
Share issue expenses 24 - (2,540) - - - (2,540)

Balance at 31 December 2003 48,716 28,285 180 9,317 723 87,221

* Represents 2 ordinary shares of $1 per share of the Company.
# The YHI International Limited Group was formed on 16 May 2003 pursuant to a Restructuring Exercise (note 2). Balances as at 1 January 2003 relate to

balance of the Company.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
Auditors’ Report - Page 31



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the financial year ended 31 December 2003

2003
Note $’000

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 13,072
Adjustments for:
  Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 16 2,565
  Interest expense 6 1,283
  Interest income 6 (70)
  Net loss from sale of property, plant and equipment 9
  Amortisation of goodwill on consolidation 17 114
  Amortisation of negative goodwill on consolidation 17 (51)
  Exchange differences (22)
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 16,900

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
   Receivables (1,181)
   Inventories (5,470)
   Other current assets 610
   Trade and other payables and provisions 5,723
Cash generated from operations 16,582
Income taxes paid 8 (2,090)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 14,492

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 197
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (4,994)
Purchase of other investment (54)
Cash and cash equivalents in subsidiaries acquired 10 2,791
Interest received 70
Net cash outflow from investing activities (1,990)

Cash flows from financing activities
Net proceeds from issue of shares 42,885
Proceeds from long-term bank loans 3,200
Repayment of trust receipt loans (5,303)
Interest paid (1,497)
Repayment of finance lease liabilities (58)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders (26)
Repayment of short-term bank loans  (net) (27,899)
Net cash inflow from financing activities 11,302

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents held 23,804
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year -
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 90
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 10 23,894

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
Auditors’ Report - Page 31
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2003

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements.

1. General

The Company is incorporated and domiciled in Singapore.  The address of the Company’s registered office is  No.
2 Pandan Road, Singapore 609254.

During the financial year, the Company converted from a private limited company into a public limited company
and changed its name from YHI International Pte Ltd to YHI International Limited.  The Company was admitted to
the official list of the Singapore Exchange on 3 July 2003.

The principal activity of the Company is that of an investment holding company. The principal activities of its
subsidiaries are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

The YHI International Limited Group was formed during the financial year pursuant to a restructuring exercise (note
2). Accordingly, there are no comparatives for the consolidated financial statements.

Comparatives for the Company were for the financial year ended 31 December 2002.

2. Restructuring exercise

The YHI International Limited Group was formed as a result of a restructuring exercise (“Restructuring Exercise”)
undertaken for the purpose of the Company’s listing on the Singapore Exchange.  The Restructuring Exercise was
undertaken on 16 May 2003 pursuant to a restructuring agreement and involved the following transactions:

(i) The holding company, YHI Holdings Pte Ltd, (“YHI Holdings”) transferred its business and assets and liabilities
(except taxation) relating to the distribution of automotive and industrial products (“Business, Assets and
Liabilities”) and a leasehold property (“the Property”) referred to below, for a purchase consideration of
$1,023,653 and $5,250,000 respectively, to YHI Corporation (Singapore) Pte Ltd (“YHI Corporation”).

The purchase consideration was based on the net book value of the assets and liabilities which approximates
its fair value as at 31 December 2002, except for the 30-year lease pertaining to the Property located at No.
2 Pandan Road Singapore 609254 which was acquired based on 100% of its valuation by an independent
licensed valuer, Robert Khan & Co Pte Ltd.  The Property was acquired in consideration of an inter-company
indebtedness of $5,250,000 due to YHI Holdings and the purchase consideration for the Business, Assets
and Liabilities was satisfied by an allotment and issue of 1,023,653 ordinary shares of $1 each in the capital
of YHI Corporation to YHI Holdings.

The amount of $5,250,000 due to YHI Holdings bears interest rates based on the Singapore InterBank Offer
Rates (“SIBOR”), is unsecured and is repayable in full by 16 May 2006.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2003

2. Restructuring exercise (continued)

(ii) The purchase consideration for the Business, Assets and Liabilities was subsequently adjusted by
$1,400,000 to take into account accretion in value thereof up to 16 May 2003. This was satisfied by way
of inter-company loan due from YHI Corporation to YHI Holdings.

(iii) The Company acquired 1,023,653 shares in YHI Corporation from YHI Holdings for a consideration of
$1,023,653.  The purchase consideration was satisfied by the allotment and issue of 1,023,653 ordinary
shares of $1 each to YHI Holdings.  The Company acquired the 2 subscribers’ shares in YHI Corporation
from Tay Tian Hoe Richard and Tay Tiang Guan, directors of the Company, at an aggregate nominal
consideration of $2.

(iv) The Company acquired the following companies from YHI Holdings. The purchase consideration was
based on the net asset values (which approximate their fair values other than land and buildings acquired)
of the respective companies as at 31 December 2002, after adjusting for the valuations of the respective
land and buildings acquired. The valuation of the respective land and buildings were determined as at
31 December 2002 based on independent valuations carried out by Robert Khan & Co Pte Ltd and
FPDSavills Property Services (Shanghai) Company Limited.

Percentage
Name of companies of equity
acquired Consideration acquired

%

YHI Manufacturing Issuance of 10,807,096 ordinary 100
(Singapore) Pte Ltd shares of S$1 each in the capital of
(“YHI Manufacturing”) the Company

YHI (Malaysia) Sdn  Bhd Issuance of 6,874,138 ordinary shares 90
(“YHI Malaysia”) of S$1 each in the capital of the Company

YHI (China) Strategy Company Issuance of 1,217,869 ordinary shares 100
Limited (“YHI China”) of S$1 each in the capital of the Company

YHI (Hong Kong) Co Limited Issuance of 5,905,037 ordinary shares 100
(“YHI Hong Kong”) of S$1 each in the capital of the Company

YHI International (Taiwan) Issuance of 6,180,562 ordinary shares 99.17
Co., Ltd (“YHI Taiwan”) of S$1 each in the capital of the Company

YHI (Australia) Pty Limited Issuance of 626,831 ordinary shares 80
(“YHI Australia”) of S$1 each in the capital of the Company

YHI (New Zealand) Limited Issuance of 1,480,781 ordinary shares 70
(”YHI New Zealand”) of S$1 each in the capital of the Company

(v) The Company acquired the remaining 10% interest in YHI Malaysia from Tay Tian Hoe Richard, a
director of the Company and Tay Thiam Seng, a director of YHI Holdings, for a purchase consideration
of $763,793, based on the Company’s share of the fair value of assets and liabilities acquired.  The
purchase consideration was satisfied by an indebtedness to Tay Tian Hoe Richard and Tay Thiam Seng.

(vi) Tay Tian Hoe Richard and Tay Tiang Guan each transferred 5 ordinary shares of par value of $0.20 each
in the capital of the Company to YHI Holdings at an aggregate nominal consideration of $2.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2003

2. Restructuring exercise (continued)

(vii) Subsidiaries’ Interim Dividends

The Business, Assets and Liabilities, the Property and the shares in YHI Corporation, YHI Malaysia, YHI
Taiwan, YHI Australia, YHI New Zealand, YHI Hong Kong, YHI China, YHI Manufacturing and the
intellectual property rights referred to in the restructuring agreement, were transferred by YHI Holdings
or, as the case may be, Tay Tian Hoe Richard or Tay Thiam Seng, with all rights, benefits or entitlements
accrued or attaching thereto as of 16 May 2003 and thereafter, provided that the Company shall not be
entitled to its share of the net interim dividends declared by YHI Malaysia, YHI Taiwan, YHI Australia,
YHI New Zealand, YHI Hong Kong and YHI Manufacturing of $380,000, $227,000, $160,000, $209,000,
$272,000 and $552,000 respectively, which in aggregate amount to $1,800,000.

In connection with the Restructuring Exercise, YHI Malaysia, YHI Taiwan, YHI Australia, YHI New Zealand,
YHI Hong Kong and YHI Manufacturing declared net interim dividends of $422,000, $229,000, $200,000,
$299,000, $272,000 and $552,000 respectively on 2 May 2003, which in aggregate amount to $1,974,000
and is payable on or after 31 May 2004 to YHI Holdings and minority shareholders including Tay Tian
Hoe Richard and Tay Thiam Seng.

In addition, YHI Holdings transferred the intellectual property rights in the YHI (logo), Advanti Racing & Device,
Advanti and Advanti Racing trademarks to the Company for a nominal consideration of $1 pursuant to the Deed of
Assignment dated 8 May 2003 and therafter the Company will license the use of the YHI (logo), Advanti Racing &
Device, Advanti and Advanti Racing trademarks to its subsidiaries and YHI (logo) to YHI Holdings and other related
corporations operating in Singapore and Indonesia for a nominal fee of $1 per annum for each licence.

The consolidated financial statements of the YHI International Limited Group for the financial period from 16 May
2003 to 31 December 2003 have been prepared using the purchase method of accounting [note 3(d)].



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2003

3. Significant accounting policies

(a) Effect of changes in Singapore Companies Legislation

Pursuant to the Singapore Companies (Amendment) Act 2002, with effect from financial year commencing on or
after 1 January 2003, Singapore-incorporated companies are required to prepare and present their statutory accounts
in accordance with the Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (“FRS”).  Hence, these financial statements,
including the comparative figures, have been prepared in accordance with FRS.

Previously, the Company prepared their statutory accounts in accordance with Singapore Statements of Accounting
Standard.  The adoption of FRS does not have material impact on the accounting policies and figures presented in
the statutory accounts for financial year ended 31 December 2002.

(b) Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.  The preparation of financial
statements in conformity with Singapore Financial Reporting Standards requires the use of estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the financial year.
Although these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of current event and actions, actual results
may ultimately differ from those estimates.

(c) Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises interest income, rental income and the invoiced value for the sale of goods net of goods and
services tax, rebates and discounts, and after eliminating sales within the Group.  Revenue from the sale of goods
is recognised when significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods are transferred to the buyer.

Dividends are recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

Interest income is accrued on a day to day basis.

Revenue arising from rental is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant
agreements.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Group accounting

Subsidiaries are those entities in which the Group has an interest of more than one half of the voting rights or
otherwise has power to govern the financial and operating policies.  The existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are presently exercisable or presently convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and are no longer
consolidated from the date that control ceases. The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the
acquisition of subsidiaries.  The cost of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given up, shares
issued or liabilities undertaken at the date of acquisition plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition.  The
difference of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiaries acquired is recorded as
goodwill.  Please refer to note (g) for the accounting policy on goodwill.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated;
unrealised losses are also eliminated unless cost cannot be recovered.  Where necessary, adjustments are made to
the financial statements of subsidiaries to ensure consistency of accounting policies with those of the Group.

(e) Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis to write off the cost of the
property, plant and equipment over their expected useful lives. The annual rates used for this purpose are:

     %

Freehold buildings 2
Leasehold properties 2 to 33.33
Office equipment, plant & machinery 10 to 50
Motor vehicles 15 to 26
Renovation 9.5 to 20
Computers 20 to 40
Furniture and fittings 10 to 40

No depreciation is provided on freehold land.

Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the asset is assessed and written down immediately
to its recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amounts and are included in
profit/(loss) from operations.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2003



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2003

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(f) Investments

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment losses in the Company’s balance sheet.  Where an
indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and written down immediately
to its recoverable amount.

Investments in other non-current investments, are stated at cost and an allowance for diminution is made where,
in the opinion of the Directors, there is a decline other than temporary in the value of such investments.  Where
there has been a decline other than temporary in the value of an investment, such a decline is recognised as an
expense in the period in which the decline is identified.

On disposal of an investment, including subsidiaries, the difference between net disposal proceeds and its carrying
amount is taken to the income statement.

(g) Goodwill

(i) Goodwill

Goodwill for the Group represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition of subsidiaries over the fair
value of the Group’s share of their identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill is amortised using the straight-line method over its estimated useful life of 10 years.

At each balance sheet date, the Group assesses whether there is any indication of impairment.  If such
indications exist, an analysis is performed to assess whether the carrying amount of goodwill is fully
recoverable.  A write-down is made if the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount.

On the acquisition of a foreign subsidiary, the goodwill arising is translated at the exchange rate prevailing
at the date of acquisition.

(ii) Negative Goodwill

Negative goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable
assets acquired over the cost of acquisition. Negative goodwill is presented in the same balance sheet
classification as goodwill. To the extent that negative goodwill relates to expectations of future losses
and expenses that are identified in the Group’s plan for the acquisition and can be measured reliably, but
which do not represent identifiable liabilities, the portion of negative goodwill is recognised in the
income statement when the future losses and expenses are recognised.

Any remaining negative goodwill, not exceeding the fair values of the non-monetary depreciable assets
acquired, is recognised in the consolidated income statement over the remaining average useful life of
those assets of 10 years; negative goodwill in excess of the fair values of those assets is recognised in the
income statement immediately.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2003

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Trade receivables

Trade receivables are stated at original invoice amount less allowance made for doubtful receivables based on a
review of all outstanding amounts at the year end. An allowance for doubtful receivables is made when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to original terms of
receivables. Bad debts are written off when identified.

(i) Accounting for leases (when a group company is the lessee)

Finance leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the lower
of the fair value of the leased property or the present value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment
is allocated between the liability and finance charge so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance
outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in borrowings. The interest
element of the finance cost is taken to the income statement over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. The property, plant and equipment
acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the asset or the lease term.

Operating leases

Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are taken
to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment required to be made to
the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as an expense in the period in which termination takes place.

(j) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.  Cost is primarily determined on a weighted
average basis and includes all costs in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.  In the case
of manufactured products, cost includes all direct expenditure and production overheads based on the normal
level of activity. Net realisable value is the price at which the inventories can be realised in the normal course of
business after allowing for the costs of realisation and, where appropriate, the cost of conversion from their
existing state to a finished condition.  Specific provisions are made where necessary for obsolete slow-moving and
defective inventories.  Inventory write downs are also made specifically for inventories that have become obsolete.
General provisions are made on the balance of inventory less specific provisions to cover unexpected losses
which have not been specifically identified.

(k) Deferred income taxes

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.  Currently enacted tax
rates are used in the determination of deferred income tax.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2003

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(l) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events that it is
probable an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of
the obligation can be made.

(m) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated in the balance sheet at cost.

(n) Borrowings

Borrowings are stated in the balance sheet at cost.

(o) Employee benefits

Employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long-service leave as a result of services rendered
by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employment benefits

The Group, apart from the legally required social security schemes, contributes to defined contribution plans
including the Central Provident Fund. The Group’s obligations in regard to the defined contribution plans, is
limited to the amount it contributes to the funds. The expenses are recognised in the income statement as incurred
and are disclosed in note 7 to the financial statements.

(p) Foreign currency translation

(1) Measurement currency

Items included in the financial statements of each entity in the Group are measured using the currency
that best reflects the economic substance of the underlying events and circumstances relevant to that
entity (“the measurement currency”).  The consolidated financial statements and balance sheet of the
Company are presented in Singapore Dollars, which is the measurement currency of the Company.

(2) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the measurement currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the date of transactions.  Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies, are recognised in the income statement.

Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated into Singapore dollars at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date or at contracted rates where they are covered by forward
exchange contracts.  Exchange differences arising are taken to the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2003

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(p) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(3) Group companies

(i) In respect of foreign subsidiaries whose operations are not an integral part of the Company’s
operations, the balance sheets are translated into Singapore dollars at the exchange rates
prevailing at the balance sheet date, and the results are translated using the average monthly
exchange rates for the financial year. The exchange differences arising on translation of foreign
subsidiaries are taken directly to the foreign currency translation reserve. On disposal,
accumulated translation differences are recognised in the consolidated income statement as
part of the gain or loss on sale.

(ii) Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as
non-monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities of the acquirer and recorded at the exchange
rate at the date of the transaction.

(q) Segment reporting

Business segments provide products and services that are subject to risks and returns that are different from those
of other business segments.  Geographical segments provide products or services within a particular economic
environment that is subject to risks and returns that are different from those of components operating in other
economic environments.

(r) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are stated in the balance sheet at cost.  For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks and bank overdrafts.
Bank overdrafts are included under borrowings in current liabilities on the balance sheet.

(s) Share capital

Incremental external costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares, other than on a business combination,
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.  Share issue costs incurred directly in connection
with a business combination are included in the cost of acquisition.

(t) Dividend

Dividends are recorded in the Group’s financial statements in the period in which they are approved by the
Group’s shareholders.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2003

4. Revenue
The Group

2003
$’000

Sale of goods 144,998
Interest income (note 6) 70
Rental income 45

145,113

5. Profit from operations

The Group
2003

$’000
The following items have been included in arriving at profit from operations:

Charging/(Crediting)
Amortisation of goodwill (included in other operating expenses) (note 17) 114
Auditors’ remuneration paid/payable to:
  - Auditors of the Company 85
  - Other auditors * 62
Other fees paid/payable to auditors of the Company 12
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 16)
  - Freehold buildings 42
  - Leasehold properties 766
  - Office equipment, plant & machinery 1,466
  - Motor vehicles 142
  - Renovation 22
  - Computers 95
  - Furniture & fittings 32

2,565
Allowance for doubtful debts and bad debts written off 981
Allowance for slow-moving and obsolete inventories 632
Inventories written off 49
Rental expense – operating leases 581
Foreign exchange gain - net (183)
Amortisation of negative goodwill (included in other operating income) (note 17) (51)

* Includes PriceWaterhouseCoopers firms outside Singapore.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2003

6. Finance costs - net

The Group
2003

$’000

Interest income:

  - Fixed deposits with financial institutions 57
  - Cash at bank 13

70

Interest expense:

  - Bank loans (849)
  - Bank overdrafts (130)
  - Trust receipt loans (218)
  - Finance leases (10)
  - Loan from holding company (76)

(1,283)

Net finance costs (1,213)

7. Staff costs

The Group
2003

$’000

Wages and salaries 11,528
Employer’s contribution to defined contribution plans
  including Central Provident Fund 1,007

12,535

Number of employees at the end of the financial year 851

During the financial year, an amount of $2,533,000 included under the Group’s staff cost has been capitalised
under inventory, being the direct production costs incurred by some subsidiaries in the Group.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2003

8. Tax

(a) Tax expense
The Group

2003
$’000

Tax expense attributable to profit is made up of:

Current income tax provision
  Singapore 752
  Foreign 1,826

2,578
Deferred tax (190)

2,388

The tax expense on profit differs from the amount that would arise using the Singapore standard rate of income tax
due to the following:

The Group
2003

$’000

Profit before tax 13,072

Tax calculated at a tax rate of 22% 2,876
Singapore statutory stepped income exemption (23)
Effect of different tax rates in other countries 554
Income not subject to tax (669)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 676
Exempt income (1,084)
Effect of tax losses not recognised 96
Others (38)

2,388
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2003

8. Tax (continued)

(b) Movements in current tax liabilities

The Group The Company
2003 2003 2002
$’000 $’000 $’000

At the beginning of financial year - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries 839 - -
Exchange differences 31 - -
Income tax paid (2,090) - -
Current financial year’s income tax expense 2,578 8 -
At the end of financial year 1,358 8 -

(c) Deferred income taxes

The movement in the deferred tax assets and liabilities (prior to offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction)
during the financial year is as follows:

The Group

Deferred tax liabilities
Accelerated tax

depreciation Others Total
$’000 $’000 $’000

At the beginning of financial year      -   - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries    2,200   -           2,200
Charged to income statement 111               3              114
Exchange differences 66                -                66
At the end of financial year 2,377               3           2,380



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2003

8. Tax (continued)

(c) Deferred income taxes  (continued)

The Group  (continued)

Deferred tax assets

Impairment
Provision loss Tax losses Others Total

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

At the beginning
  of financial year - - - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries 794 103 64 291 1,252
Credited to income statement 368 (29) (42) 7 304
Exchange differences 50 1 1 2 54
At the end of financial year 1,212 75 23 300 1,610

The Company
Unrealised

exchange loss Total
$’000 $’000

At the beginning of financial year - -
Credited to income statement 20 20
At the end of financial year 20 20

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off and when the
deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority.  The following amounts, determined after appropriate
offsetting, are shown in the balance sheet:

The Group The Company
2003 2003 2002
$’000 $’000 $’000

Deferred tax assets (1,534) (20) -
Deferred tax liabilities 2,304 - -

770 (20) -
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8. Tax (continued)

(c) Deferred income taxes  (continued)

The amounts shown in the balance sheet included the following:

The Group The Company
2003 2003 2002
$’000 $’000 $’000

Deferred tax assets to be recovered
  after more than 12 months (827) (20) -

Deferred tax liabilities to be settled
  after more than 12 months 2,164 - -

The Group’s and Company’s provision for deferred tax have been computed based on the corporate tax rate and
tax laws prevailing at balance sheet date.  On 27 February 2004, the Singapore Minister of Finance announced a
reduction in corporate tax rate from 22% to 20% with effect from the year of assessment 2005.  The Group’s and
Company’s deferred tax credit for the current financial year have not taken into consideration the effect of the
reduction in the corporate tax rate, which will be accounted for in the Group’s and Company’s deferred tax credit
in the year ending 31 December 2004. The Group’s and Company’s deferred tax provisions as of 31 December
2003 would be reduced by approximately  $16,000 and $2,000 respectively when the new corporate tax rate of
20% is applied.

9. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to members of YHI International
Limited by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the financial year.

The Group
2003

Net profit attributable to members of YHI International Limited ($’000) 10,043

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
  for basic earnings per share (’000) 137,154

Basic earnings per share 7.32 cents

Diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per share. There are no dilutive potential ordinary shares
as no share options have been granted during the financial year.
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10. Cash and cash equivalents

The Group The Company
2003 2003 2002
$’000 $’000 $’000

Cash at bank and on hand 10,902 641 -
Fixed deposits with financial Institutions 13,492 13,423 -

24,394 14,064 -

The fixed deposits with financial institutions for the Group and Company mature on varying dates within 3
months (2002: Nil for Group and Company) from the financial year end. The weighted average effective interest
rate of these deposits for the Group and Company as at 31 December 2003 was 0.79%  (2002: Nil for Group and
Company) per annum.

For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow statement, the financial year end consolidated cash and cash
equivalents comprise the following:

The Group
2003

$’000

Cash and bank balances (as above) 24,394
Less: Bank overdrafts (note 19) (500)

Cash and cash equivalents per consolidated cash flow statement 23,894
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10. Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries

The subsidiaries were acquired pursuant to the Restructuring Exercise (note 2) and the aggregate effects of the
acquisition of subsidiaries are as follows:

The Group
2003

Note $’000

Fair values of identifiable net assets of subsidiaries acquired
Property, plant and equipment 16 39,842
Other investment 74
Trade and other receivables 42,751
Inventories 31,759
Cash and bank balances 3,917
Other current assets 3,070
Deferred tax assets 8 1,252
Total assets 122,665

Borrowings 62,857
Trade and other payables 21,854
Current tax liabilities 8 839
Deferred tax liabilities 8 2,200
Total liabilities 87,750

Net identifiable assets 34,915
Less : Minority interest (957)
Net identifiable assets purchased 33,958
Goodwill 17 1,005

Total consideration 34,963

Less: non-cash consideration * (34,116)
Less: cash and cash equivalents in subsidiaries acquired:
 - cash and bank balances (3,917)
 - bank overdraft 279
Net cash inflow from acquisition of subsidiaries (2,791)

* The non-cash purchase consideration was satisfied by the allotment and issue of 34,115,967 ordinary shares of $1 each [note 24(b)] as
part of the Restructuring Exercise (Note 2).
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11. Receivables

The Group The Company
2003 2003 2002
$’000 $’000 $’000

Trade receivables :
  - Third parties 51,550 - -
  - Related corporation 52 - -

51,602 - -

Less: Allowance for doubtful receivables (8,314) - -
43,288 - -

Due from subsidiaries (non-trade) - 33,891 -
Other receivables 644 - -

43,932 33,891 -

The non-trade amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on demand.

12. Inventories

The Group The Company
2003 2003 2002
$’000 $’000 $’000

At cost

Work-in-progress 1,482 - -
Materials and supplies 2,325 - -

3,807 - -

At net realisable value

Finished goods 37,061 - -
Less: Allowance for slow-moving
  and obsolete inventories (3,639) - -

33,422 - -

Total 37,229 - -

Inventories of $12,465,000 of the Group have been pledged as security for bank borrowings (note 19).
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13. Other current assets
The Group The Company

2003 2003 2002
$’000 $’000 $’000

Prepayments 2,017 5 -
Deposits 443 - -

2,460 5 -

14. Investments in subsidiaries
The Company

(a) 2003 2002
$’000 $’000

Unquoted equity shares, at cost 34,963 -

Acquisition of subsidiaries

All the subsidiaries were acquired pursuant to the Restructuring Exercise (note 2).

The acquired subsidiaries contributed revenue of $144,998,000 and operating profit of $10,675,000 to the Group
for the period from 16 May 2003 to 31 December 2003. The subsidiaries’ assets and liabilities at 31 December
2003 were $138,454,000 and $59,680,000 respectively.  The effect of the acquisition to the Group’s financial
position are disclosed in note 10 to the financial statements.

The subsidiaries are:

Country of Percentage
Incorporation/ of equity

Name of Company Principal Activities Place of Business holdings
2003

%
Held by the Company:

+ YHI Manufacturing Investment holding, importer, exporter Singapore 100
(Singapore) Pte Ltd and distributor of alloy wheels and

related goods

+ YHI Corporation Importer, exporter and distributor of Singapore 100
(Singapore) Pte Ltd tyres, alloy wheels and related goods and

industrial batteries

++ YHI (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd Importer and distributor of tyres, alloy Malaysia 100
wheels and related goods and industrial
batteries

++ YHI (China) Strategy Investment holding Hong Kong 100
Company Limited

++ YHI (Hong Kong) Importer, exporter and distributor of tyres, Hong Kong 100
Co Limited alloy wheels and related goods

++ YHI International (Taiwan) Manufacturing, distribution and export Taiwan 99.17
Co., Ltd. of alloy wheels

* YHI (Australia) Pty Limited Importer and distributor of tyres, alloy Australia 80
wheels and related goods

++ YHI (New Zealand) Limited Importer and distributor of tyres, alloy New Zealand 70
wheels and related goods
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14. Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Percentage of
Country of  effective equity

Incorporation/  interest held
Name of Company Principal Activities Place of Business  by the Group

2003
%

Held by the subsidiaries:

** YHI Manufacturing Manufacturing, distribution and The People’s 100
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd (1) export of alloy wheels Republic of China

** YHI International Distribution of tyres, alloy wheels and The People’s 100
Marketing (Shanghai) related goods Republic of China
Co., Ltd (2)

* YHI Power Pty Limited (3) Importer and distributor Australia 64
of industrial batteries

+ Audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, Singapore.
++ Audited by other members of the worldwide PricewaterhouseCoopers organisation.
* Audited by Lamb Lowe & Partners.
** Audited by Shanghai Da Long Certified Public Accountants Co., Ltd for local statutory purposes.  For the purpose

of preparing the consolidated financial statements, these financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers, Shanghai, a member of the worldwide PricewaterhouseCoopers organisation.

(1) These shares are held by YHI Manufacturing (Singapore) Pte Ltd.
(2) These shares are held by YHI (China) Strategy Company Limited.
(3) These shares are held by YHI (Australia) Pty Limited.

15. Other investments

The Group
2003

$’000

At cost

Club memberships, at  cost 128
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Office
equipment,

Freehold Freehold Leasehold plant and Motor Furniture
Land Buildings Properties machinery Vehicles Renovation Computers and fittings Total

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Cost

At the beginning
  of financial year - - - - - - - - -
Arising from acquisition
  of subsidiaries 2,511 3,366 22,397 18,729 1,238 810 1,269 616 50,936
Exchange differences 109 271 (75) 38 36 30 34 34 477
Additions - 2 - 3,844 287 143 147 84 4,507
Disposals - - (33) (657) (212) (18) (4) (71) (995)
At the end of
  financial year 2,620 3,639 22,289 21,954 1,349 965 1,446 663 54,925

Accumulated
depreciation
At the beginning of
  financial year - - - - - - - - -
Arising from acquisition
  of subsidiaries - 23 1,661 6,999 543 548 900 420 11,094
Exchange differences - 2 10 45 20 1 27 26 131
Depreciation charge - 42 766 1,466 142 22 95 32 2,565
Disposals - - - (632) (152) (4) (1) - (789)
At the end of
  financial year - 67 2,437 7,878 553 567 1,021 478 13,001

Net book value at
  31 December 2003 2,620 3,572 19,852 14,076 796 398 425 185 41,924

(a) During the financial year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment with an aggregate cost of
$4,507,000 (2002: nil) of which $172,000 was acquired by means of finance lease.

(b) At the balance sheet date, the net book value of property, plant and equipment of the Group under
finance lease agreements (note 20) amounted to $311,000.

(c) At the balance sheet date, property, plant and equipment of the Group pledged as securities for borrowings
(note 19) are as follows:

The Group
2003

Net book value
$’000

Freehold land 2,404
Freehold buildings 3,329
Leasehold properties 7,652
Office equipment, plant and machinery 2,158

15,543

16. Property, plant and equipment

The Group
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17. Intangibles

The Group
2003

$’000

Goodwill arising on consolidation [note (i)] 1,714
Negative goodwill arising on consolidation [note (ii)] (772)

942

(i) Goodwill arising on consolidation

At the beginning of financial year -
Acquisition of subsidiaries 1,828
Amortisation for the financial year (114)
At the end of financial year 1,714

(ii) Negative goodwill arising on consolidation

At the beginning of financial year -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (823)
Amortisation for the financial year 51
At the end of financial year (772)

18. Trade and other payables

The Group The Company
2003 2003 2002
$’000 $’000 $’000

Trade payables 9,652 - -
Due to holding company (non-trade) 2,448 1,048 -
Due to a related party (non-trade) 12 - -
Accrued operating expenses 7,205 253 3
Other payables 1,751 22 -
Payable for purchase of plant and equipment 372 - -
Advance payments received 117 - -
Payables to directors 2,874 2,874 -

24,431 4,197 3
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18. Trade and other payables  (continued)

The non-trade amounts due to holding company are unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on demand,
except for an amount of $1.4 million which is repayable on demand from 31 May 2004 or such later date as may
otherwise be agreed.

The non-trade amount due to a related party is unsecured, interest-free and is repayable on demand. The related
party is a company in which certain directors have interest in.

The amounts payable to directors relate primarily to performance bonus payable to executive directors of the
Company, computed based on the terms pursuant to the service agreements entered between the Company and
the executive directors. The terms of the service agreements are set out in the Prospectus dated 24 June 2003.

19. Borrowings

(a) Current
The Group

2003
$’000

Trust receipt loans 11,522
Bank overdrafts 500
Finance lease liabilities (note 20) 79
Short-term bank loans 8,248
Long-term bank loans due within twelve months 2,874

23,223

(b) Non-current
The Group

2003
$’000

Finance lease liabilities (note 20) 215
Long-term bank loans 4,500
Loan from holding company 5,250

9,965

Total borrowings 33,188
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19. Borrowings (continued)

(c) Secured liabilities

Included in the borrowings are the following secured liabilities:
The Group

2003
$’000

Trust receipt loans 11,522
Finance lease liabilities (note 20) 294
Bank overdrafts 500
Short-term bank loans 8,248
Long-term bank loans 7,374

27,938

Security for borrowings

Trust receipt loans, bank overdrafts, short-term loans and long-term bank loans granted to the Group, are secured
by the following:

(i) a first legal mortgage on the Group’s freehold and leasehold properties;

(ii) a first legal charge on office equipment, plant and machinery of a subsidiary (note 16) and guarantee
notes provided by the subsidiary;

(iii) a first and floating charge on all the assets [including inventories (note 12)]  of a subsidiary;

(iv) corporate guarantee from YHI Holdings Pte Ltd;

(v) corporate guarantee from the Company (note 28);

(vi) banker’s guarantees, up to $10.3 million, given as security to another financial institution which
granted banking facilities to certain subsidiaries. The banker’s guarantees are in turn secured by a first
and floating charge on all the assets of a subsidiary as referred to paragraph (iii) above; and

(vii) joint and several personal guarantees of certain directors of the Company. Following the listing of the
Company on the SGX-ST, the directors are in the process of seeking a discharge from their obligations
under the personal guarantees.
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19. Borrowings (continued)

(d) Interest rate risk

The weighted average effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were as follows:
The Group

2003
%

Trust receipt loans 3.3
Finance lease liabilities 7.6
Bank loans 5.8
Bank overdrafts 6.1
Loan from holding company 2.3

The exposure of borrowings of the Group to interest rate changes and the periods in which the borrowings reprice
are as follows:

Less than 6 to 12 1 to 5 Over 5
6 months months  years years Total

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

The Group

At 31 December 2003

Total borrowings 32,939 34 87 128 33,188

(e) Carrying amounts and fair values

The carrying amounts and fair values of non-current borrowings (excluding finance lease liabilities) are as follows:

Carrying Fair
amounts Values

2003 2003
$’000 $’000

Bank loans 4,500 4,500

Loan from holding company 5,250 5,250

The borrowing rates for long-term bank loans and loan from holding company are variable and are based on a
fixed margin over the lending banks’ cost of funds and/or SIBOR rate. The directors expect the borrowings rates to
be similar to the borrowing rates to be available to the Group at the balance sheet date. The directors are of the
opinion that the carrying amounts of the long-term bank loans and loan from holding company approximate to
their fair values.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2003

19. Borrowings (continued)

(f) Maturity of non-current borrowings

Maturity of non-current borrowings (excluding finance lease liabilities) is as follows:

The Group
2003

$’000

Between 1 and 2 years  3,111
Between 2 and 5 years 6,639

9,750

20. Finance lease liabilities

The Group
2003

$’000

Minimum lease payments due:

Within 1 year 100
Between 1 and 5 years 254

354

Less:
Finance charges (60)

294

The present value of finance lease liabilities is as follows:

Within 1 year (note 19) 79
Between 1 and 5 years (note 19) 215

294
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21. Dividends

The dividend payable relates primarily to interim dividends declared by subsidiaries pursuant to the Restructuring
Exercise (note 2).

At the Annual General Meeting on 22 April 2004, a final dividend of 0.6 cents per share amounting to a total of
$1,169,000 net of tax at 20% is to be recommended. These financial statements do not reflect this dividend
payable, which will be accounted for in the shareholders’ equity as an appropriation of retained earnings in the
year ending 31 December 2004.

22. Provision

Provision relates to business tax that was levied on a foreign subsidiary, YHI International (Taiwan) Co., Ltd (“YHI
Taiwan”).

YHI Taiwan entered into a lease agreement (“Lease Agreement”) with a third party in 1996.

YHI Taiwan built a new factory in 1996 and the newly-built factory was transferred to the third party in 1997 in
accordance with the Lease Agreement.  In 1998, the Taoyuan County Tax Department (“Tax Department”) ruled
that a 5% business tax, which is NT$1,158,617 (S$58,000) is applicable to such transfer and in addition, YHI
Taiwan had to pay a penalty which is 5 times the quantum of the business tax.

YHI Taiwan has filed an appeal and the matter is still currently pending. A full provision, representing the business
tax and penalty, has been made for this contingent exposure.

23. Holding company

The immediate and ultimate holding company is YHI Holdings Pte Ltd, incorporated in Singapore.

24. Share capital of YHI International Limited

(a) Authorised ordinary share capital

During the year, the Company increased its authorised share capital from 100,000 ordinary shares of $1 each to
100 million ordinary shares of $1 each. The authorised share capital was further subdivided into 5 ordinary shares
of $0.20 each.

The total authorised number of ordinary shares is 500 million shares (2002: 100,000 shares) with a par value of
$0.20 per share (2002: $1 per share).
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24. Share capital of YHI International Limited  (continued)

(b) Issued ordinary share capital
2003 2002 2003 2002

Shares Shares $’000 $’000
’000 ’000

At the beginning of financial year * * * *

Issue of shares of $1 each pursuant to
  the Restructuring Exercise (note 2) 34,116 - 34,116 -

Before sub-division of shares 34,116 * 34,116 *

Sub-division of each ordinary share of $1
  each into 5 ordinary shares of $0.20 each 170,580 - 34,116 -

Issue of shares pursuant to the initial
  public offering  58,000 - 11,600 -

Issue of placement shares  15,000 -   3,000 -

At the end of financial year 243,580 * 48,716 *

* Represents 2 ordinary shares of $1 per share of the Company.

During the year, the Company:

- issued 34.1 million ordinary shares of $1 each at par pursuant to the Restructuring Exercise (note 2);

- sub-divided each ordinary share of $1 each in its authorised and issued share capital into 5 ordinary
shares of $0.20 each;

- issued 58 million ordinary shares of $0.20 each at a premium of $0.30 per share for cash, pursuant to its
initial public offering (“IPO”) on the Singapore Exchange; and

- issued 15 million ordinary shares of $0.20 each at a premium of $0.895 per share to institutional investors.
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24. Share capital of YHI International Limited  (continued)

(c) The movements in the share premium account are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity.

(d) The Company incurred an amount of $2,540,000 of share issue expenses which were set-off against the share
premium account. Included in the share issue expenses are non-audit fees of $497,000 paid to the auditors of the
company, in relation to the initial public offering of the Company.

25. Retained earnings / (Accumulated loss)

(a) The retained earnings of the Group and the Company are distributable.

(b) Movement in retained earnings /(accumulated loss) for the Company are as follows:

The Company
2003 2002
$’000 $’000

At the beginning of financial year (3) (2)
Net profit/(loss) for the financial year 1,740 (1)
At the end of financial year 1,737 (3)

Movement in retained earnings for the Group is shown in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity.

26. General reserve

This represents amounts set aside in compliance with local laws in certain overseas subsidiaries and is non-
distributable.

27. Minority interests

2003
$’000

At the beginning of financial year -
Acquisition of subsidiaries 957
Share of profit after tax of subsidiaries 641
Exchange differences 121
Dividends (282)
At the end of financial year 1,437
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28. Contingent liabilities

(a) Corporate guarantees given are as follows:

The Group The Company
2003 2003 2002
$’000 $’000 $’000

Unsecured guarantees given to banks in connection
with bank facilities provided to subsidiaries - 95,927 -

(b) The Company has given an undertaking to provide continued financial support to certain subsidiaries in the
normal course of business.

29. Lease commitments

(a) Operating lease commitments

The Group has lease commitments in respect of leases of land which are as follows:

(i) lease of land up to 31 August 2009 for a monthly rental presently of $5,895; and
(ii) lease of land up to 30 September 2014 for a monthly rental presently of $10,869.
(iii) The above lease rentals are subject to annual revision up to 7.6% per annum.

(b) In addition, the Group has future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases payable as
follows:

The Group The Company
2003 2003 2002
$’000 $’000 $’000

Within one year 372 - -
Between 1 and 5 years 201 - -

573 - -
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30. Capital commitments

Capital commitments not provided for in the financial statements:

The Group The Company
2003 2003 2002
$’000 $’000 $’000

Expenditure contracted for purchase
of plant and machinery 4,735 - -

31. Financial risk management

The Group is mainly exposed to interest rate risk, currency exchange risk, credit risk and liquidity risk that arise in
its normal course of business. The Group’s risk management policies and guidelines are set to monitor and control
the potential material adverse impact of these exposures.

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest bearing assets. The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily
to its debt obligation with financial institutions. Interest rates on borrowings are monitored closely to ensure
that the borrowings are maintained at competitive interest rates.

(ii) Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to movements in foreign currency rates arising from purchases of goods from suppliers
and sales made to customers in several countries primarily with respect to United States dollars, Euro dollars
and Japanese Yen.  Where appropriate, the Group engages in foreign currency forward contracts to reduce
exposure from the currency fluctuations arising from its trading operations. The Group does not utilise
forward contracts or other arrangements for trading or speculative purposes. The outstanding foreign exchange
forward contracts at financial year end are disclosed in Note 32.

(iii) Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group’s policy is to manage its credit risk
through application of credit approvals, credit limits and monitoring procedures. The Group also maintains
a provision for doubtful accounts receivable based on the expected collectibility of all accounts receivable.

(iv) Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy on liquidity risk management is to monitor and maintain sufficient cash resources and
the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities.
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32. Financial instruments

In order to manage the risks arising from fluctuations in currency exchange rates, the Group makes use of the
following derivative financial instruments:

Forward foreign exchange contracts

Forward foreign exchange contracts are entered into to manage exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency
exchange rate for efficient portfolio management.

At 31 December 2003, the settlement dates on the open forward foreign exchange contracts ranged between one
to three months.  The local currency equivalent amounts to be received and contractual exchange rates of the
Group’s outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts were:

The Group
2003

$’000

US Dollars

[at rates averaging US$1 = S$1.77] 2,173

There was no outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts for the Company at 31 December 2003 (2002: Nil).

Fair values

The carrying amounts of the following financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group and  the Company
approximate to their fair values : cash and cash equivalents, receivables, other investments, trade and other
payables, current borrowings and finance lease obligations. Information on the fair value of long-term bank loans
and non-current loan due to holding company is set out in note 19.
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32. Financial instruments (continued)

The unfavourable fair values of the forward foreign exchange contracts for the Group at 31 December 2003 were
$93,000. The fair values of forward foreign exchange contracts have been calculated (using the rates quoted by
the Group’s bankers) to terminate the contracts at the balance sheet date.

33. Related party transactions

The following related party transactions took place between the Group and related parties during the financial
year on terms agreed by the parties concerned:

(a) Sales and purchases of goods and services

The Group
2003

$’000

Sales to a related company 73
Interest paid to holding company 76
Management fee received/receivable from holding company 120
Legal fees paid to Hee Theng Fong & Co 3

272

Hee Theng Fong & Co is owned by a director of the Company, Mr Hee Theng Fong. Professional fees charged to
the Group are based on normal commercial terms.

(b) Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration included fees, salary, bonus, commission and other emoluments (including benefits-in-
kind) computed based on the cost incurred by the Group and the Company, and where the Group or Company
did not incur any costs, the value of the benefit is included.  The total directors’ remuneration is as follows :

The Group
2003

$’000

Directors’ remuneration :
-  directors of the Company 3,737
-  directors of subsidiaries 987
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34. Segment information

Primary reporting format – business segments

Distribution of
automotive

products and Manufacturing
industrial products of alloy wheels Elimination Group

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Year ended 31 December 2003

Sales :
-  external sales 104,600 40,398 - 144,998
-  inter-segment sales - 11,476 (11,476) -

104,600 51,874 (11,476) 144,998

Segment result 10,369 4,176 - 14,545
Unallocated costs (260)
Profit from operations 14,285
Finance costs - net (1,213)
Profit before tax 13,072
Income tax expense (2,388)
Profit after tax 10,684
Minority interests (641)
Net profit 10,043

Segment assets 90,542 50,885 (4,617) 136,810
Unallocated assets 15,733
Consolidated total assets 152,543

Segment liabilities 36,550 23,064 (36,776) 22,838
Unallocated liabilities 41,047
Consolidated total liabilities 63,885

Other segment items
Capital expenditure 697 3,810 - 4,507
Depreciation 844 1,721 - 2,565
Amortisation 105 (42) - 63
Allowance for slow- moving
  and obsolete inventories 391 241 - 632
Inventories written off 49 - - 49

At 31 December 2003, the Group is organised into two main business segments:

(a) Distribution
- the distribution of automotive products and industrial products.

(b) Manufacturing
- the manufacturing of alloy wheels.
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34. Segment information (continued)

Inter-segment transactions are determined on an arm’s length basis.  Unallocated costs represent corporate expenses.
Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, inventories, receivables and
operating cash and mainly exclude other investment and deferred tax assets.  Segment liabilities comprise operating
liabilities and exclude items such as taxation, borrowing and deferred tax liabilities.  Capital expenditure comprises
additions to property, plant and equipment.

Secondary reporting format - geographical segments

The Group’s two business segments operate in following geographical areas:

Capital
Sales Total assets expenditure
2003 2003 2003
$’000 $’000 $’000

Singapore 47,461 40,407 223
Malaysia 15,565 12,213 71
China/Hong Kong 53,372 56,188 3,793
Taiwan 14,701 9,776 87
Australia 16,080 14,723 307
New Zealand 9,295 9,247 26
Unallocated corporate assets - 15,733 -

156,474 158,287 4,507
Eliminations (11,476) (5,744) -

144,998 152,543 4,507

The Company is headquartered in Singapore and it is an investment holding company and the business segments
in each geographical area where subsidiaries are located are as follows:

(a) Singapore, Malaysia, Australia and New Zealand
- the areas of operation mainly arise from distribution of automotive and industrial products.

(b) China/Hong Kong
- the areas of operation mainly arise from both distribution of automotive products and manufacturing

of alloy wheels.

(c) Taiwan
- the areas of operation mainly arise from manufacturing of alloy wheels.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2003

35. Events occurring after balance sheet date

(i) On 13 January 2004, a subsidiary, YHI Manufacturing (Singapore) Pte Ltd, made a capital injection of
US$400,000 (S$676,720) representing 40% interest, in Eastbourne Metal Coatings Co., Ltd (“Eastbourne”),
a company newly incorporated in the People’s Republic of China which provides metal surface finishing
services to produce chrome alloy wheels.  Eastbourne will be an associate of the Group after the capital
injection.

(ii) On 9 February 2004, a subsidiary, YHI Manufacturing (Singapore) Pte Ltd, made a capital injection of
US$1,500,000 (S$2,542,500) in YHI Advanti Manufacturing (Shanghai) Co., Ltd, a wholly owned
subsidiary company newly incorporated in the People’s Republic of China which is engaged in the
manufacturing and distribution of alloy wheels.

(iii) On 26 February 2004, the wholly owned subsidiary, YHI Manufacturing (Singapore) Pte Ltd increased its
issued ordinary share capital from S$10,516,737 to S$13,735,957 by way of an issue of 3,219,220
ordinary shares of S$1 each at par for cash of S$3,219,220.  The newly issued shares rank pari passu in
all respect with the previously issued shares.

(iv) On 2 March 2004, a subsidiary, YHI Corporation (Singapore) Pte Ltd, acquired 10% equity interest in
Hangzhou Yokohama Tire Co., Ltd. (“YRC Hangzhou”), a corporation manufacturing Yokohama tyres in
the Peoples’ Republic of China, from the ultimate holding company for a consideration of S$2,219,400.
The consideration is based on the cost of the investment in YRC Hangzhou by YHI Holdings. In addition,
YHI Corporation (Singapore) Pte Ltd made an additional capital injection of S$1,360,400 in YRC Hangzhou.
The equity interest in YRC Hangzhou remains at 10% following the capital injection.

36. Authorisation of financial statements

These financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of directors of
YHI International Limited on 30 March 2004.
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STATISTICS OF SHAREHOLDINGS
as at 16 March 2004

Authorised share capital $100,000,000.00
Issued Share Capital $48,715,969.00
Number of Shares 243,579,845
Class of shares ordinary shares of S$0.20 each
Voting rights one vote per share

ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS
No. of % of % of

Size of Shareholdings Shareholders Shareholders No. of Shares Shareholdings

1 - 999  -  -  - -
1,000 - 10,000 575 76.67 2,660,000 1.09
10,001 - 1,000,000 165 22.00 12,027,000 4.94
1,000,001 - and above 10 1.33 228,892,845 93.97

Grand Total 750 100.00 243,579,845 100.00

PUBLIC SHAREHOLDERS %

Non-public shareholders 61.82%
Public shareholders 38.18%

Pursuant to Rules 723 of the Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited, it is confirmed that at
least 10% of the issued ordinary shares of the Company is at all times held by the public.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
No. of Shares

Direct Interest Deemed Interest %

YHI Holdings Pte Ltd 150,579,845 - 61.82
Tay Tian Hoe Richard - 150,579,845 61.82
Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited - 15,000,000 6.16  (1)

Schroder Investment Management Group - 16,350,000 6.71  (2)

Notes
(1) Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited is deemed to have an interest in the 15,000,000 shares registered in the name

of Seletar Investments Pte Ltd.
(2) Schroder Investment Management Group is deemed to have an interest in the 16,350,000 shares registered in the

name of Schroder Investment Management (Singapore) Limited and Schroder Investment Management Limited.



STATISTICS OF SHAREHOLDINGS
as at 16 March 2004

TWENTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS AS AT 16 MARCH 2004

% of
Name of Shareholder No.  of Shares Shareholdings

1 YHI HOLDINGS PTE LTD 150,579,845 61.82
2 RAFFLES NOMINEES PTE LTD 27,573,000 11.32
3 SELETAR INVESTMENTS PTE LTD 15,000,000 6.16
4 DBS NOMINEES PTE LTD 10,321,000 4.24
5 DBS VICKERS SECURITIES (S) PTE LTD 8,833,000 3.63
6 OVERSEA CHINESE BANK NOMINEES PTE LTD 6,112,000 2.51
7 MORGAN STANLEY ASIA (SINGAPORE) SECURITIES PTE LTD 4,557,000 1.87
8 ORIX INVESTMENT AND MANAGEMENT PTE LTD 2,000,000 0.82
9 WATERWORTH PTE LTD 2,000,000 0.82
10 CITIBANK NOMINEES SINGAPORE PTE LTD 1,917,000 0.79
11 G K GOH STOCKBROCKERS PTE LTD 948,000 0.39
12 UNITED OVERSEAS BANK NOMINEES PTE LTD 583,000 0.24
13 ROYAL BANK OF CANADA NOMINEES PTE LTD 516,000 0.21
14 LEE LING LING 449,000 0.19
15 HSBC (SINGAPORE) NOMINEES PTE LTD 445,000 0.18
16 SUMMERHILL PTE LTD 400,000 0.16
17 SUMMERLIGHT PTE LTD 400,000 0.16
18 SUNFIELD PTE LTD 400,000 0.16
19 CHUA HONG THUAN 332,000 0.14
20 ASDEW ACQUISITIONS PTE LTD 250,000 0.10

Total: 233,615,845 95.91
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YHI INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Resolution 1

Resolution 2

Resolution 3

Resolution 4

Resolution 5

Resolution 6

Resolution 7

Resolution 8

Resolution 9

Resolution 10

Resolution 11

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Annual General Meeting of YHI International Limited will be
held at Jurong Country Club on the 22nd day of April 2004 at 09.30 a.m. for the following purposes:-

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive and, if approved, to adopt the Audited Accounts for the financial year ended 31
December 2003 together with the Directors’ Report and Auditors’ Report thereon

2. To declare a first and final dividend of 0.60 cents per share less income tax at 20% for the
financial year ended 31 December 2003 as recommended by the Directors

3. To approve Directors’ fees of S$44,877 for the financial year ended 31 December 2003

4. To re-elect Mr Tay Tiang Chong Jackson who is retiring under Article 117 of the Articles of Association

5. To re-elect Mr Yuen Sou Wai who is retiring under Article 117 of the Articles of Association

6. To re-elect Mr Henry Tan Song Kok is retiring under Article 117 of the Articles of Association

7. To re-elect Mr Hee Theng Fong who is retiring under Article 117 of the Articles of Association

8. To re-elect Mr Phua Tin How who is retiring under Article 117 of the Articles of Association

9. To re-appoint Messrs PricewaterhouseCoopers, Certified Public Accountants as auditors of
the Company and to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration

10. To transact any other ordinary business which may be properly transacted at an Annual General
Meeting.

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions (with or without amendments) as
Ordinary Resolutions:-

11. IT WAS RESOLVED THAT approval be and is hereby given to the Directors to offer and grant
options under the YHI Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”) and to allot and issue from time
to time such number of shares in the Company as may be required to be issued pursuant to
the exercise of options under the Scheme, provided always that the aggregate number of
shares to be issued pursuant to the Scheme shall not exceed 15 per cent of the total issued
share capital of the Company from time to time.

12. IT WAS RESOLVED THAT the Directors be and are hereby authorised pursuant to the provisions
of Section 161 of the Companies Act, Cap. 50 (the “Act”) to allot and issue shares and
convertible securities of the Company on such terms and conditions and with such rights or
restrictions as they may deem fit PROVIDED ALWAYS THAT the aggregate number of shares
and convertible securities to be issued pursuant to this resolution shall not exceed fifty per
cent (50%) of the issued share capital of the Company, of which the aggregate number of
shares and convertible securities to be issued other than on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders shall not exceed twenty per cent (20%) of the issued share capital of the Company
and that such authority shall continue in force until the conclusion of the next Annual General
Meeting or the expiration of the period within which the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company is required by law to be held, whichever is the earlier, unless the authority is
previously revoked or varied at a general meeting. For the purposes of this resolution, the
percentage of issued share capital shall be based on the Company’s issued share capital at the
time of the passing of this resolution after adjusting for:-

(a) new shares arising from the conversion or exercise of convertible securities or from
exercising share options for vesting of share awards outstanding or subsisting at the
time of the passing of this resolution provided the options or awards were granted in
compliance with the listing manual; and

(b) any subsequent consolidation or subdivision of shares
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NOTICE IS ALSO HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Transfer Book and the Register of Members of the Company will be closed
from 29 April 2004 to 30 April 2004  (both dates inclusive) for the purpose of preparing dividend warrants.  Duly completed
transfers received by the Company’s Registrar, Barbinder & Co. Pte Ltd, at 8 Cross Street #11-00 PWC Building, Singapore
048424 up to 5.00 p.m. on 28 April 2004 will be registered to determine shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed dividend.
The first and final dividend of 0.60 cents per share less income tax at 20 %, if approved at the Annual General Meeting, will
be paid on 13 May 2004.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

………………………………….
Ms Gn Jong Yuh Gwendolyn
COMPANY SECRETARY

7 April 2004
SINGAPORE

Notes :-

(i) A member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote in his stead.
A member of the Company, which is a corporation, is entitled to appoint its authorised representative or proxy to
vote on its behalf.

A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

The instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the Company’s registered office at No. 2 Pandan Road,
Singapore 609254 at least 48 hours before the time of the Meeting.

(ii) If re-elected under Resolution 4, Mr Tay Tiang Chong Jackson will remain as Executive Director of the Company.

(iii) If re-elected under Resolution 5, Mr Yuen Sou Wai will remain as Executive Director of the Company.

(iv) If re-elected under Resolution 6, Mr Henry Tan Song Kok will remain as the Chairman of the Audit Committee and
a member of the Remuneration Committee and Nominating Committee, and will be considered an independent
director of the Company.

(v) If re-elected under Resolution 7, Mr Hee Theng Fong will remain as the Chairman of Remuneration Committee
and a member of the Audit Committee, and will be considered as independent director of the Company.

(vi) If re-elected under Resolution 8, Mr Phua Tin How will remain as Chairman of Nominating Committee and a
member of the Audit Committee, and will be considered as independent director of the Company.
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as my/our proxy/proxies to attend and to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company
to be held at Jurong Country Club on the 22nd  day of April 2004 at 09.30 a.m. and at any adjournment thereof.  I/We
direct my/our proxy to vote for or against the Resolutions to be proposed at the Meeting as hereunder indicated.

PROXY FORM YHI INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

I/We of

being a member/members of the above-mentioned Company, hereby appoint:-

Name Address NRIC/Passport No.
Proportion of

Shareholdings (%)

and/or (delete as appropriate)

No. Ordinary Resolutions For Against

Ordinary Business

1. To adopt the Audited Accounts, Directors’ Report and Auditors’ Report

2. To declare a first and final dividend of 0.60 cents per share less income tax at 20%

3. To approve the payment of Directors’ Fees

4. To re-elect Mr Tay Tiang Chong Jackson as a Director under Article 117

5. To re-elect Mr Yuen Sou Wai as a Director under Article 117

6. To re-elect Mr Henry Tan Song Kok as a Director under Article 117

7. To re-elect Mr Hee Theng Fong as a Director under Article 117

8. To re-elect Mr Phua Tin How as a Director under Article 117

9. To re-appoint Auditors and authorise Directors to fix their remuneration

Special Business

10. To authorise Directors to allot and issue shares in connection with the exercise
of options granted pursuant to YHI share option Scheme

11. To authorise Directors to allot shares pursuant to Section 161 of the
Companies Act, Cap. 50

Dated this                                        day of                                                                   2004.

Signature(s) of member(s) or Common Seal

IMPORTANT: PLEASE READ NOTES OVERLEAF

No. of Shares Held



Notes to the Proxy Form

1. Please insert the total number of shares held by you. If you have shares entered against your name in the Depository Register (as defined in Section
130A of the Companies Act, Chapter 50), you should insert that number of shares. If you have shares registered in your name in the Register of
Members, you should insert that number of shares. If you have shares entered against your name in the Depository Register and shares registered in
your name in the Register of Members, you should insert the aggregate number of shares entered against your name in the Depository Register and
registered in your name in the Register of Members. If no number is inserted, the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies shall be deemed to relate
to all the shares held by you.

2. A member entitled to attend and vote at a meeting of the Company is entitled to appoint not more than two proxies to attend and vote in his stead.

3. Where a member appoints two proxies, he shall specify the percentage of his shares to be represented by each proxy and if no percentage is
specified, the first named proxy shall be deemed to represent 100 per cent of his shareholding and the second named proxy shall be deemed to be
an alternate to the first named.

4. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

5. The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies together with the letter of power of attorney, if any, under which it is signed or a duly certified copy
thereof, must be deposited at the registered office of the Company at 2 Pandan Road, Singapore 609254 at least 48 hours before the time appointed
for the Annual General Meeting.

6. A corporation which is a member may authorise by resolution of its directors or other governing body such a person as it thinks fit to act as its
representative at the Annual General Meeting, in accordance with Section 179 of the Companies Act, Chapter 50.

7. Please indicate with an “X” in the spaces provided whether you wish your vote(s) to be for or against the Resolutions as set out in the Notice of Annual
General Meeting.  In the absence of specific directions, the proxy/proxies will vote or abstain as he/they may think fit, as he/they will on any other
matter arising at the Annual General Meeting.

8. The Company shall be entitled to reject the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies if it is incomplete, improperly completed or illegible or where
the true intentions of the appointor are not ascertainable from the instructions of the appointor specified in the instrument appointing a proxy or
proxies.

9. In the case of a member whose shares are entered against his name in the Depository Register, the Company may reject any instrument appointing
a proxy or proxies lodged if the member, being the appointor, is not shown to have shares entered against his name in the Depository Register as at
48 hours before the time appointed for holding the Annual General Meeting, as certified by The Central Depository (Pte) Limited to the Company.








